Willie International Holdings Limited

WA BB 95 A R A W
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)
(A W Sk oL 2 A R A H))

Listed Since 1972  Stock Code: 273

H19724 i e fREE: 273

2009

ANNUAL REPORT
F



Corporate Information

Financial Highlights

Notice of Annual General Meeting
Chairman’s Statement
Biographies of Directors
Directors’ Report

Corporate Governance Report
Independent Auditor’s Report

Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Income

Consolidated Statement of Financial
Position

Statement of Financial Position

Consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements

Summary of Financial Information

Particulars of Properties Held
by the Group

2009 3 EFIEIBRIZRARAA

Contents

B &%

ARIER 2
BBHME 4
BRRBEAEES 5
FEHRE 11
EEEE 17
EESHRE 19
TEERRE 25
BN RE 32
mEZHWRERE 34
mEeEMBRRER 36
Bt 78 AR S 3R 3k 38
mEEZEHX 39
mEBRERERXR 40
mEMKBRMETE 43
HMBEERBE 143
REBBEEZYEFE 145



WILLIE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 2009 Annual Report
Corporate Information
NAEEH

DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Chuang Yueheng, Henry (Chairman)
King Phillip (Managing Director)
Wong Ying Seung, Asiong

Wang Lin

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Cheung Wing Ping (appointed with effect from 2 October 2009)
Lin WaiYi (resigned with effect from 2 October 2009)

Liu Jian

Shum Ming Choy (resigned with effect from 22 April 2009)
Wen Louis (appointed with effect from 22 April 2009)

Yau Yan Ming, Raymond

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Cheung Wing Ping (Chairman) (appointed with effect from 2 October 2009)
Lin WaiYi (resigned with effect from 2 October 2009)

Shum Ming Choy (resigned with effect from 22 April 2009)

Wen Louis (appointed with effect from 22 April 2009)

Yau Yan Ming, Raymond

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Wong Ying Seung, Asiong (Chairman)

Shum Ming Choy (resigned with effect from 22 April 2009)
Wen Louis (appointed with effect from 22 April 2009)

Yau Yan Ming, Raymond

QUALIFIED ACCOUNTANT
Ho Wai Chu

COMPANY SECRETARY
Chan Mee Sze

HRE (EE)
TR (EFRLE)
Fio%

E#

RRYMR-_FTNF+A-BEZRD)
EE2ER-_FTAFTAZAED)

LR (R-_FTNFOA-+T-HED)
BRM-ZZFNFOMA-T _HEZE)
S B

B
¥

ZZ88
RET (FE) W_TENETA_ABED)
EBER-_TTNETAZBEML)

g FENFMA-T-BFE)

TNFOA-T-HEZRME)

(E
(%
(

alli
oF ?:Fﬂk —H

A
\
i
RZE

BE  OF
G I

A
A

=!
=
)

FHEES

T (£FE)

LRI (R-_FTNFOA-+ZBED)
BER-_ZFENFHA-T-_HEZME)
iy

REREE
EE-$75

DNRAWE
G



AUDITOR

Mazars CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
42/F, Central Plaza

I8 Harbour Road

Wanchai

Hong Kong

REGISTERED AND PRINCIPAL OFFICE
32/F, China United Centre

28 Marble Road

North Point

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Chong Hing Bank Limited

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited
The Bank of East Asia, Limited

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited

SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Transfer Office

Shops 1712-1716,

I'7/F, Hopewell Centre

|83 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

Investor Centre

I7M Floor, Hopewell Centre
|83 Queen's Road East
Hong Kong

INTERNET ADDRESS
http://www.willie273.com

http://www.irasia.com/listco/hk/willie/index.htm

2009 4% EABEIREZERERAT
Corporate Information
NAEEH

BB
BEGHMEBMBERAT
BRERNE A

BB 185
HIRES 4218

HMREERER
BB

A

FEE28%
EREPLIE

FEARRT
BIERITER DA

R TR (EM) BRAF
RERTERAA
EELBESRITARAA

BROEMRBFE
BERRBFAEZLERLA
BPE

A&

ERRER183H

BB L7
1712-1716%5% 48

REZREH L
A&
ERRER183H
AP LITMIE

3k
http://www.willie273.com

http://www.irasia.com/listco/hk/willie/index.htm



WILLIE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 2009 Annual Report
Financial Highlights
BBHE

TURNOVER SUMMARY EEERE

Year ended

;ﬁlﬁDecember 0 5 (8,998)*
+-A=+-BLEE

Year ended

%ZIEDecember 06 2,192%
TZAZt+-HLEFE

Year ended

31 December 07 £
A 104,928
TZA=t+-HLEEE

Year ended

51 Beeembar 0 8 (341,209)

HZE

TZA=t+-HLEFE

Year ended

3| December 09 94,451

LS
TZA=T-HLEEE

NET ASSETS SUMMARY FEEERE
(In HK$'000)

(F#Ex)

sl 05 s

BLEER 06 | e

e 07

a2 08

At 3| December o 9
W+=B=t+-R 2,530,020



2009 3 EFIEIBRIZRARAA

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Annual General Meeting of Willie International
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) will be held at 30/F, China United Centre, 28
Marble Road, North Point, Hong Kong on Tuesday, | June 2010 at 9:00 a.m. for the

purpose of transacting the following business:

ORDINARY RESOLUTIONS

I. To receive and consider the audited consolidated financial statements and the

reports of the directors and auditor of the Company for the year ended 3|
December 2009,

2. To re-elect the retiring directors, Mr. King Phillip, Mr. Liu Jian and Mr. Yau Yan

Ming, Raymond as directors of the Company and to authorise the board of

directors of the Company to fix their remunerations.

3. To re-appoint Mazars CPA Limited as auditor of the Company and to

authorise the board of directors of the Company to fix their remuneration.

As special businesses, to consider and if thought fit, pass with or without

modification the following resolutions as ordinary resolutions:

4. “THAT:

(A) subject to paragraph (C) below, the exercise by the directors of the

Company (the “Directors”) during the Relevant Period (as hereinafter
defined) of all the powers of the Company to allot, issue and deal with
additional shares in the capital of the Company and to make or grant
offers, agreements and options (including warrants, bonds and
debentures convertible into shares of the Company) which might require
the exercise of such powers be and is hereby generally and

unconditionally approved;

the Directors be and are authorised during the Relevant Period to make
or grant offers, agreements and options (including warrants, bonds and
debentures convertible into shares of the Company) which might require
the exercise of such powers during or after the end of the Relevant

Period;
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the aggregate nominal amount of share capital allotted or agreed
conditionally or unconditionally to be allotted (whether pursuant to an
option or otherwise) by the Directors pursuant to the approval in
paragraphs (A) and (B), otherwise than (i) a Rights Issue (as hereafter
defined) or (ii) the exercise of rights of subscription or conversion under
the terms of any existing warrants, bonds, debentures, notes or other
securities issued by the Company which carry rights to subscribe for or
are convertible into shares of the Company or (iii) an issues of shares
under any option scheme or similar arrangement for the time being
adopted for the grant or issue to the employees of the Company and/or
any of its subsidiaries or any other eligible person(s) of shares or right to
acquire shares of the Company or (iv) an issue of shares as scrip
dividend pursuant to the Articles of Association, from time to time, shall
not exceed 20% of the aggregate nominal amount of the share capital of
the Company in issue as at the date of passing this resolution and the

said approval shall be limited accordingly; and

for the purposes of this resolution:

"Relevant Period” means the period from the time of the passing of this

resolution until whichever is the earliest of:

(i)  the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the Company;

(i) the expiration of the period within which the next annual general
meeting of the Company is required by the memorandum and
articles of association of the Company or any applicable law of

Hong Kong to be held; and

(i) the revocation or variation of the authority given under this
resolution by an ordinary resolution of the shareholders of the

Company in general meeting.
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

“Rights Issue” means an offer of shares open for a period fixed by the

Directors to holders of shares on the register of members on a fixed

record date in proportion to their then holdings of such shares (subject

to such exclusions or other arrangements as the Directors may deem

necessary or expedient in relation to fractional entitlements or having

regard to any restrictions or obligations under the laws of any relevant

jurisdiction, or the requirements of any recognised regulatory body or

any stock exchange)

“THAT:

(A)

subject to paragraph (C) below, the exercise by the Directors
during the Relevant Period (as hereinafter defined) of all powers of
the Company to purchase securities in the capital of the Company
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) or any other stock exchange on which the securities of
the Company may be listed and recognised by the Securities and
Futures Commission and the Stock Exchange for this purpose, and
that the exercise by the Directors of all powers of the Company to
purchase such securities are subject to and in accordance with all
applicable laws, be and is hereby generally and unconditionally

approved;

the approval in paragraph (A) shall be in addition to any other
authorisation given to the Directors and shall authorise the
Directors on behalf of the Company during the Relevant Period to
procure the Company to purchase its securities at a price

determined by the Directors;

the aggregate nominal amount of securities in the capital of the
Company purchased or agreed conditionally or unconditionally to
be purchased by the Company pursuant to the approval in
paragraph (A) during the Relevant Period shall not exceed 10% of
the aggregate nominal amount of the share capital of the Company
in issue as at the date of passing this resolution and the said

approval shall be limited accordingly; and
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(D) for the purposes of this resolution:

“Relevant Period” means the period from the time of the passing of

this resolution until whichever is the earliest of:

(i) the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the

Company;

(i) the expiration of the period within which the next annual
general meeting of the Company is required by the
memorandum and articles of association of the Company or

any applicable law of Hong Kong to be held; and

(iii)  the revocation or variation of the authority given under this
resolution by an ordinary resolution of the shareholders of

the Company in general meeting.’

“THAT conditional upon the passing of the ordinary resolution no.
4 and 5 above, the aggregate nominal amount of the shares in the
capital of the Company which are purchased by the Company
pursuant to and in accordance with the said resolution no. 5 shall
be added to the aggregate nominal amount of the share capital of
the Company that may be allotted or agreed conditionally or
unconditionally to be allotted by the Directors pursuant to and in
accordance with the ordinary resolution no. 4 above, provided that
such extended amount shall not exceed 10% of the aggregate
nominal amount of the share capital of the Company in issue at the

date of passing of this resolution.”
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

“THAT the existing scheme mandate limit in respect of the granting
of options to subscribe for shares in the Company under the share
option scheme adopted by the Company on 20 November 2002
(the "Share Option Scheme”) be refreshed and renewed provided
that the total number of shares of the Company which may be
allotted and issued pursuant to the grant or exercise of the options
under the Share Option Scheme (excluding options previously
granted, outstanding, cancelled, lapsed or exercised under the Share
Option Scheme), shall not exceed 10% of the shares of the
Company in issue as at the date of passing this resolution (the
"Refreshed Limit") and that the Directors be and are hereby
authorised, subject to compliance with the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange, to grant options under
the Share Option Scheme up to the Refreshed Limit and to
exercise all the powers of the Company to allot, issue and deal with

shares of the Company pursuant to the exercise of such options.”
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By order of the Board
Willie International Holdings Limited
Chan Mee Sze

Company Secretary

Hong Kong, 29 April 2010

Registered Office and Head Office:
32/F, China United Centre

28 Marble Road

North Point

Hong Kong
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As at the date of this notice, the Board comprises four executive Directors, namely, Dr. Chuang RABEAY EFehNENTEE (HREE
Yueheng, Henry, Mr. King Phillip, Mr. Wong Ying Seung, Asiong and Mr. Wang Lin and four T 2EELEE  FTHFZERIMAL) RUERE
independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Cheung Wing Ping, Mr. Liu Jian, Mr. Wen Louis and THRITEF (RETLE 8RS  BRELER

Mr.Yau Yan Ming, Raymond.
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Notes: EE

10

A form of proxy to be used for the meeting is enclosed.

Any member of the Company entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to
appoint another person as his proxy to attend and vote instead of him. On a poll votes
may be given either personally or by proxy. A proxy need not be a member of the
Company. A member may appoint more than one proxy to attend on the same

occasion.

To be valid, the instrument appointing a proxy must be in writing under the hand of the
appointor or of his attorney duly authorised in writing, or if the appointor is a
corporation, either under seal or under the hand of an officer or attorney duly

authorised.

The instrument appointing a proxy and the power of attorney or other authority, if any,
under which it is signed or a notarially certified copy of that power or authority shall be
deposited at the Company’s share registrar and transfer office, Computershare Hong
Kong Investor Services Limited, at |7M Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Hong Kong not less than 48 hours before the time for holding the meeting or
adjourned meeting or poll (as the case may be) at which the person named in such
instrument proposes to vote, and in default the instrument of proxy shall not be treated

as valid.

Where there are joint registered holders of any share, any one of such persons may
vote at the meeting, either personally or by proxy, in respect of such share as if he were
solely entitled thereto but if more than one of such joint holders be present at any
meeting personally or by proxy, that one of the said persons so present whose name
stands first on the register in respect of such share shall alone be entitled to vote in

respect thereof.
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On behalf of the board of directors (the "Board”) of Willie International Holdings
Limited (the "Company"), | am pleased to present to the shareholders the results of
the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2009 (the “Year”).

FINAL RESULTS

The Company made a positive profit alert announcement on 5 March 2010 which
indicated the Group has achieved a turnaround from its core businesses. For the
Year, the Group reported a positive turnover of approximately HK$94 million, an
increase of approximately HK$435 million, as compared with a negative tumover of
approximately of HK$341 million in last year. The rise in turnover was mainly
contributed by the increase in net gains from the sale of investments of
approximately HK$410 million and the increase in rental income of approximately
HK$26 million.

Benefiting from the continued recovery of Hong Kong as well as other major stock
markets, rental income and the gradual growth of property market and the
improvement of the money lending portfolio, the Group reported a consolidated
profit of approximately HK$129 million for the Year as compared to a consolidated
loss of approximately HK$798 million in last year. The consolidated profit was mainly
attributed by the net gains from the sale of investments and net fair value gains on
trading of investments held in an aggregate amount of approximately HK$64 million
(2008: an aggregate losses of approximately HK$550 million), net fair value gains on
investment properties of approximately HK$ 19 million (2008: net fair value losses of
approximately HK$48 million) and the reversal of allowance and recovery of bad
debts in loans receivable in an aggregate amount of approximately HK$59 million
(2008: an aggregate allowance and bad debts of approximately HK$I55 million).
Earnings per share for the Year was HK$0.28 (2008: loss per share of HK$5.09).

DIVIDEND
The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the Year (2008:
Nil).
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BUSINESS REVIEW & PROSPECTS

Business Review

Last year in the annual report of the Company, | talked about an “unprecedented
turbulence in the financial markets” that started in the second half of 2007 which
continued through 2008 and into 2009. | also mentioned of “a gleam of hope” while
many economists were sure that the world economy would be in shambles
throughout 2009 and probably well beyond with no one knowing how long the
financial crisis would last and how damaging its effects would be. | also mentioned
that “to say we have seen the worst may be premature but we are seeing signs of
stabilization in the financial markets”. Looking back now, we can say that the market
hit a bottom at the end of the first quarter and that in the second half of the year

the economy stopped shrinking and started to grow again.

There are still economic weaknesses in many parts of the world with the latest
casualty or reminder being that of Greece. Hong Kong’s open economy has left it
exposed to the global economic slowdown, GDP felt in 2009 as a result of the
global financial crisis, but third quarter 2009 real GDP grew over the second quarter,
indicating that the economic recovery is underway. Increasing integration with China
has helped the recovery from the downturn more quickly than many other
countries. Hong Kong over the past few years has become increasingly integrated
with China through trade, tourism, and financial links. In 2009 Hong Kong has
become the first Chinese yuan trade settlement facility outside of China. The
recovery can be reflected in the Hong Kong Stock Exchange Hang Seng Index which
hit a low of about | 1,300 in March 2009 only to rebound to about 21,800 by the

end of December 2009 where it has been consolidating.

Under the shadow of the financial tsunami, the Company continued to take a
conservative and cautious approach in investing and has achieved a turnaround from
its core businesses. We remain active in seeking opportunities in financial services,
energy related projects, and property investments. For our investment portfolio, we
have made minor adjustments to our stock holdings. The portfolio benefitted from
the recovery of the stock market and returned a profit of approximately HK$72
million for the Year which was mainly contributed by net gains from the sale of
investments approximately HK$26 million and net fair value gains on trading of
investments held of approximately HK$38 million. To strengthen the money lending
business, we acquired 50% equity stake in Best Purpose Limited (“Best Purpose”)
which wholly-owns a money lender in Hong Kong. This business segment also
reported a profit of approximately HK$84 million mainly attributed to the reversal

of allowance and recovery of bad debts of approximately HK$59 million and the
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rest to the stable interest income. We looked into many investment proposals or
projects and identified one potential oil project in Kazakstan which we subsequently
decided against after careful evaluations. The Company disposed of its wholly-owned
subsidiary, Richful Zone International Limited, which owns certain rights to forestry
sites in Yunnan Province for convertible bond of Mascotte Holdings Limited
("Mascotte”, a HKEx listed company). The Company has acquired 23rd Floor of
China United Centre, 28 Marble Road, North Point, Hong Kong and certain
properties in Bel-Air while disposed of one residential property in Elizabeth House,
Nos. 250 — 254 Gloucester Road, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong. In an attempt to
diversify its property portfolio, the Company has sold approximately 44.73% interest
of its property arm, Cordoba Homes Limited, for the cash consideration of HK$450

million. The additional capital can be used to acquire additional properties.

Prospect

With the worst of the economy behind us and the recovery beginning, the
investment environment is positive for 2010. During the past few years, we have
worked to put the Company in a financially flexible position. With a strong balance
sheet and a low interest environment, we believe that we should be able to invest in

projects that would make the Company financially attractive to investors.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Liquidity

During the Year, the Group invested approximately HK$26 million and HK$20 million
in property, plant and equipment, and other investment in artworks respectively. It
also invested approximately HK$37 million in various investment properties located
in Hong Kong. These capital expenditures were mostly financed from internal
resources and partly from bank borrowings. The Group also disposed of an

investment property for HK$6 million in cash.
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At 31 December 2009, the Group's total equity amounted to approximately
HK$2,530 million (2008: approximately HK$ 1,541 million) and had net current assets
of approximately HK$!1,593 million including cash and cash equivalents of
approximately HK$196 million (2008: approximately HK$754 million including cash
and cash equivalents of approximately HK$167 million). The Group continued to
maintain a single-digit gearing ratio of 3.9% (2008: 8.2%), which is computed on the
basis of net borrowings to total equity, and current ratio of 41.3 times (2008: 13.3

times).

During the Year, the Group obtained additional bank borrowings of HK$40 million
and repaid approximately HK$38 million bank loans. At 31 December 2009, the
Group had secured bank borrowings of approximately HK$295 million (2008:
approximately HK$293 million) of which 9.3%, 9.4%, 24.9% and 56.4% (2008: 8.3%,
8.5%, 23.6% and 59.6% respectively) are repayable within one year, in the second
year, between the third to fifth year and over five years respectively. Same as last
year, the Group’s bank borrowings carrying interest rates were calculated with
reference to prime rate and HIBOR and denominated in Hong Kong dollars. The

Group did not have any financial instruments used for hedging purpose.

As most of the Group’s transactions and bank balances were denominated in Hong

Kong dollars, the Group'’s exposure to foreign exchange rate was minimal.

Capital Resources

During the Year, the Company has done various exercises to strengthen its capital
position. In July 2009, the Company successfully placed 77,990,000 ordinary shares
at a price of HK$ | per share raising net proceeds of approximately HK$75 million.
In the same month, the Group also exchanged the entire interest in Richful Zone
International Limited, which indirectly owns the rights to (i) obtain 50% interest in
the forestry land use rights and forestry tree entitlement and (ii) share 50% of
distributable profits of three forestry sites in Yunnan Province of the PRC for a 4%
convertible bond due 2012 in the principal amount of HK$130 million issued by
Mascotte at an initial conversion price of HK$0.50 per Mascotte's ordinary share. At
the date of completion, the convertible bond was valued by an independent
professional valuer at approximately HK$256 million and a gain on disposal of
approximately HK$125 million was then recognised in the consolidated financial
statements. The Group subsequently disposed of this convertible bond in the
principal amount of HK$20 million at a cash consideration of HK$45 million and also
exercised the rest of the conversion rights attached to this convertible bond into

220 million ordinary shares of Mascotte being held for investment trading purpose.
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In September 2009, an independent third party agreed to subscribe 750 million
shares in Cordoba Homes Limited (“Cordoba”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, for a cash consideration of HK$450 million. Cordoba and its subsidiaries
(collectively “Cordoba Group”) are principally engaged in the property investment,
investment holding and money lending businesses. The subscription monies were
used for expansion of the existing business scope and future development of the
business of Cordoba Group. The transaction was completed in December 2009.
Upon completion, the Company's interest in Cordoba Group was subsequently
reduced to 55.27% and a deemed disposal loss of approximately HK$ 152 million
was recognised in the consolidated financial statements. In March 2010, a
supplemental agreement was entered to extend the time of balance payment of
HK$300 million for further six months with a compensation of HK$5 million for

such extension.

In a move to strengthening its money lending business, the Group acquired a 50%
equity stake in Best Purpose, which wholly-owned a money lending company in
Hong Kong, in August 2009 through the issuance of a 2% convertible note due 2012
in the principal amount of HK$180 million by the Company which was fully
converted into 129,496,402 new shares of the Company by the noteholder in
September 2009.

Subsequent to balance sheet date, the Company successfully placed 200 million
ordinary shares at a price of HK$0.45 per share raising net proceeds of
approximately HK$87 million of which HK$75 million was used to increase the
capital of the money lending business of the Group and the rest was used to finance
the balance payment for the purchase of 23rd Floor of China United Centre. In
March 2010, the Company granted 59,740,000 share options to several grantees
who exercised their option rights in full in the same month for a total amount of

approximately HK$22 million.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

At 31 December 2009, certain assets of the Group with an aggregate carrying value
of approximately HK$684 million (2008: approximately HK$636 million) have been
pledged to banks to secure banking facilities granted to the Group.
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CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

At 31 December 2009, the Group had capital commitments in respect of acquisition
of property, plant and equipment contracted and investment properties contracted
for but not provided in the consolidated financial statements amounting to

approximately HK$62 million (2008: approximately HK$36 million).

CONTINGENT LIABLITIES

At the balance sheet date, the Company had provided corporate guarantees for
banking facilities amounting to approximately HK$320 million (2008: approximately
HK$296 million) granted to its subsidiaries, which were utilized to the extent of
approximately HK$283 million (2008: approximately HK$251 million). The directors
assessed the overall exposure of the corporate guarantees granted by the Company
and considered that the fair value of such corporate guarantees is immaterial to the

financial statements of the Company.

EMPLOYEES

At 31 December 2009, the Group employed a total of 29 employees (2008: 31
employees). The Group remunerates its employees based on their performance,
working experience and prevailing market standards. Employee benefits include a
medical insurance coverage, a mandatory provident fund and a share option

scheme.

APPRECIATION
We would like to take this opportunity to thank the shareholders of the Company
for your continuing support and we also thank our dedicated staff for their

contributions to the success of the Group.

By order of the Board

Willie International Holdings Limited

Dr. Chuang Yueheng, Henry

Chairman

[9 April 2010
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. Chuang Yueheng, Henry, aged 54, was appointed as the Chairman of the
Company in 2002. He holds Masters degrees in Petroleum Engineering and in
Business Administration from the University of Southern California in the United
States of America. In 2007, Dubna University of Russia awarded Dr. Chuang an
Honorary Doctorate degree in Petroleum Engineering in recognition of his
achievements in the field of petroleum engineering. He has over |7 years of

experience in corporate finance and development.

Mr. King Phillip, aged 39, was appointed as the Managing Director of the Company
in 2005. He holds a Master’s degree in Business Administration from the University
of San Francisco in the United States of America. He has over 20 years of

experience in real estate investment, management and development.

Mr. Wong Ying Seung, Asiong, aged 59, was appointed as the Director of the
Company in 2002. He holds a Bachelor's degree in Chemical Engineering from the
University of London in the United Kingdom. He has over 30 years of experience in

banking and investment.

Mr.Wang Lin, aged 55, was appointed as the Director of the Company in 2006. He
studied Electronics from the Yunnan Radio and TV University. He is an Economist by

profession with over 32 years of experience in accounting and finance.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Cheung Wing Ping, aged 43, is an accounting manager of an investment holding
company and has over |9 years of experience in auditing and accounting fields. He
holds a bachelor's degree in Accountancy with honours from City University of
Hong Kong and is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified

Public Accountants.

Mr. Liu Jian, aged 41, was appointed as the Director of the Company in 2006. He
holds a Bachelor’s degree in Electrical Engineering from the Fudan University,
Shanghai in the People's Republic of China as well as a Master’s degree in Chinese
Law from the Jilin University in the People’s Republic of China. He is a Senior
Economist by profession and has over |7 years of experience in corporate finance
and investment banking. Mr. Liu is the President of Jasmine Nanotech Fund and the

Chairman of Beijing National Net Union Hi-tech Company Limited in Beijing.

Mr.Wen Louis, aged 75, was appointed as the Director of the Company in 2009. He
holds a Bachelor degree in Engineering from the City University of New York. He
has an extensive experience in engineering, marketing and advertising in the United
States where he held senior positions in ]. Walter Thompson Co. and Dow Jones
International Marketing Services for a number of years. He is an executive director
of Forefront Group Limited, a company listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited.

Mr.Yau Yan Ming, Raymond, aged 41, was appointed as the Director of the Company
in 2006. He holds a Master’s degree in Science majoring in Japanese business studies
and Bachelor's degree in Business Administration majoring in accounting in the
United States of America. He is a Certified Public Accountants both in Hong Kong
and in the United States of America. He is also an associate member of Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and American Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. He has over |12 years of working experience in the areas of auditing,
accounting, taxation, company secretarial, corporate finance and financial
management. He is a Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of iMerchants Limited
and an independent non-executive director of Birmingham International Holdings

Limited, both are publicly listed companies in Hong Kong.
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The Board submits their annual report together with the audited consolidated

financial statements for the Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group is principally engaged in the business of property investment, investment
in securities trading, money lending and investment holding. Details of the principal
activities and other particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in note |7

to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS
The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated statement of

comprehensive income on page 34 and 35.

The Board does not recommend the payment of a dividend.

RESERVES
Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company during the Year are set

out in note 30 to the consolidated financial statements.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the past

five financial years is set out on pages 143 and [44.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES AND PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Details of significant changes in the investment properties and property, plant and
equipment of the Group during the Year are set out in notes 14 and |5 respectively

to the consolidated financial statements.

Particulars of the major properties of the Group at 31 December 2009 are set out

on pages 145 to 148.

BORROWINGS
Details of the interest-bearing borrowings of the Group are set out in note 26 to

the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the Year are set

out in note 29 to the consolidated financial statements.
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SHARE OPTIONS

Details of the share option scheme of the Company are set out in note 31 to the
consolidated financial statements. During the Year, no share options were granted
and exercised under the share option scheme of the Company. At 31 December

2009, there was no outstanding share option.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SECURITIES
During the Year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or

redeemed any of the listed securities of the Company.

OPTIONS OR SIMILAR RIGHTS

Movements in share option scheme and convertible note during the Year are set out
in notes 3| and 28 to the consolidated financial statements respectively. The
Company or any of its subsidiaries has no outstanding options or similar rights at 31

December 2009.

WARRANTS
All the outstanding warrants were expired in April 2009. During the Year, no warrant

was exercised by the warrant holders.

DIRECTORS
The Directors of the Company during the Year and up to the date of this report

were:

Executive Directors

Chuang Yueheng, Henry
King Phillip

Wong Ying Seung, Asiong
Wang Lin

Independent Non-executive Directors

Cheung Wing Ping (appointed with effect from 2 October 2009)
Lin WaiYi (resigned with effect from 2 October 2009)

Liu Jian

Shum Ming Choy (resigned with effect from 22 April 2009)
Wen Louis (appointed with effect from 22 April 2009)

Yau Yan Ming, Raymond
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In accordance with Article 120 of the Articles of Association of the Company, Mr.
King Phillip, Mr. Liu Jian and Mr. Yau Yan Ming, Raymond retire by rotation and, being

eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

The term of office of each independent non-executive Director is for a period of
three years but subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the general
meetings of the Company in accordance with the Articles of Association of the
Company. The Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting do not have service contracts which are not determinable by the Company
within one year without payment of compensation other than statutory

compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

At 31 December 2009, the interests and short positions of the Directors and chief
executive of the Company in shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or its associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the "SFQ")), as recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of

Listed Issuers (the “Model Code"), were as follows:

(i)  Long positions in ordinary shares and underlying shares of the Company at 3|

December 2009:

Name of director Nature of interest
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Ex£B BEME FEEERHEE RESLOEIL
Chuang Yueheng, Henry Beneficial interest 23,353,440 391%
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(i) Long positions in the shares of associated corporations of the Company at 3| (i) RZEZNF+ZA=+—8  RiaH
December 2009: FERGZEFRWT
Number Approximate

Name of of ordinary percentage of
Name of director associated corporation Nature of interest shares held shareholding
ExEE B EE AR BEME FEEBREE RESVEI
King Phillip Mascotte Holdings Limited Beneficial interest 45,000 0.01%
TRIE SHERBAERARF BEnES
At no time during the Year was the Company, any of its holding company, ARTE] - HEMERAR - §E A7) 5k R R M

subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the
Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares

in or debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

There was no contract of significance to which the Company, its holding company or
subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director of the Company had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the Year or at any time

during the Year.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

At 31 December 2009, the following interests and short positions of 5% or more of
the issued share capital and underlying shares of the Company (other than a
Director or chief executive of the Company) were recorded in the register of

interests required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO:
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of ordinary percentage of

Name Nature of interest shares held shareholding
L BEME FEEBEREE RESNEIHL
Heritage International Holdings Limited Interest of controlled corporation 130,598,402 21.86%

EEZRARRA R rEES

Save as disclosed above, at 31 December 2009, no person, other than the Directors
of the Company, whose interests are set out herein this report, had registered an
interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company that

was required to be recorded pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.
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RETIREMENT SCHEME

The Group provides a defined contribution retirement scheme under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “Scheme”) in Hong Kong to all staff. Under
the Scheme, employer and employees are each required to make contributions to

the scheme at 5% of the employees’ relevant income.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
For the Year, the percentages of the Group’s turnover, excluding the net gains from
the sale of investments at fair value through profit or loss, attributable to its largest

customer and five largest customers were 26% and 53% respectively.

Heritage International Holdings Limited, the substantial shareholder (at end of the
Year) of the Company, and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as "Heritage
Group”) is one of the five largest customers of the Group referred to above. In the
opinion of the directors, transactions with Heritage Group were carried out on

terms no less favourable than terms with independent third parties.

As the Group had no significant purchases during the Year, the information on major

suppliers is not presented.

Save as aforementioned, at no time during the Year did a Director, an associate of a
Director or a shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the
Directors of the Company owned more than 5% of the Company’s issued share

capital) have any material interest in any of the Group's five largest customers.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS
No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or existed during

the Year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS
There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of Association of
the Company, or the laws of Hong Kong, which would oblige the Company to offer

new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT
The Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout the Year.
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AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements of the Company for each of the three years
ended 3| December 2009 were audited by Mazars CPA Limited, Certified Public
Accountants. A resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company to re-appoint Mazars CPA Limited as auditor of the
Company.

On behalf of the Board

Willie International Holdings Limited

King Phillip

Managing Director

[9 April 2010
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CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) of the Company is committed to maintain
high standards of corporate governance, integrity and to ensure transparent and
adequate levels of disclosure. The Company has complied with all Code Provisions
set out in Appendix 14 Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the "Code") of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange™) throughout the financial
year ended 3| December 2009.

The Board will continue to review and recommend such steps as appropriate in a

timely manner in order to comply with the requirements of the Code.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has complied with the requirements for director's securities
transactions stated in the “Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers” (the “Model Code”) in Appendix |0 of the Listing Rules. All
Directors of the Company has confirmed that they have complied with the

requirements as set out in the Model Code for the year ended 31 December 2009.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND BOARD MEETING

The Board is comprised of eight members as at the date of this report and their

positions are as follows:

Executive Directors

Chuang Yueheng, Henry (Chairman)
King Phillip (Managing Director)
Wong Ying Seung, Asiong

Wang Lin

Independent Non-executive Directors

Cheung Wing Ping

Liu Jian

Wen Louis

Yau Yan Ming, Raymond
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The Board is responsible for overseeing the overall business strategy, management
planning and control of the Company. The management is responsible for day-to-day
management of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”). All
Directors have accumulated sufficient and valuable experience to carry out their
duties in an efficient and effective manner. Details of the backgrounds and
qualifications of the Directors are set out in the section headed “Biographies of
Directors” on pages |7 and I8 of the annual report for the year ended 3|
December 2009 (the “Annual Report”). None of the members of the Board have, in

any respect, relation to each other in any circumstances.

All Directors of the Company have acted in good faith for the best interests of the
Company and the stakeholders of the Company. Other than the statutory duties
imposed on each of them, all of the Directors have exercised due care in monitoring
the corporate matters of the Company and have provided grave concern, sufficient

time and attention to all the significant issues and affairs of the Group.

For the sake of transparency and independency of the management of the Company,
duties of the Chairman and the Managing Director of the Company are segregated
and not executed by the same individual. The Chairman is responsible for the
management of the Board and external corporate communication. The Managing
Director is responsible for the day-to-day operation, among other matters, the

implementation of overall strategy of the Company.

The independent non-executive Directors were appointed by reference to their
respective qualification and experience to ensure that they are competent to
perform their duties and to protect the interests of the stakeholders. The
independent non-executive Directors were appointed with specific term by the
Company and they are subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three
years. The Company has received annual confirmation of independence from the
independent non-executive Directors in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. The Board assessed and concluded that all the independent non-executive

Directors are independent under the definition of the Listing Rules.
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The Board held eleven full board meetings in 2009. Details of the attendance of the

Board members are as follows:

Executive Directors Attendance
Chuang Yueheng, Henry 7111
King Phillip [0
WongYing Seung, Asiong [/
Wang Lin [0/11
Independent Non-executive Directors Attendance
Cheung Wing Ping (appointed with effect from 2 October 2009) 2/11
Lin Wai Yi (resigned with effect from 2 October 2009) 8/11
Liu Jian 911
Shum Ming Choy (resigned with effect from 22 April 2009) 411
Wen Louis (appointed with effect from 22 April 2009) 711
Yau Yan Ming, Raymond [/

Save for the above board meetings held in 2009, meetings of the Directors were
held to discuss and transact other special businesses. The Board members are
provided with appropriate and sufficient information in a timely manner to keep
abreast of the Group's latest developments. All businesses transacted at the board

meetings are properly documented and recorded.

TRAINING FOR DIRECTORS

Each newly appointed Director receives a comprehensive and formal induction to
ensure that he/she has an appropriate understanding of (i) the business and
operations of the Group; (ii) his/her responsibilities and obligations under the Listing
Rules and relevant regulatory requirements; (iii) the Compliance Manual of the

Company and (iv) the Model Code.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee of the Company (the “Remuneration Committee”)
was formed in June 2005. The Company formulated written terms of reference for
the Remuneration Committee and the adopted terms of reference are in

compliance with the Code Provision B.1.3.
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The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee, among others, are (i) to make
recommendations to the Board on the Company's policy and structure for all
remuneration of Directors and senior management and (ii) to review the special
remuneration packages of all executive Directors by reference to the corporate
goals and objectives resolved by the Board from time to time. During the year, the
Remuneration Committee had reviewed the remuneration package for the

Directors, senior management and general staff of the Group.

As at the date of this report, the Remuneration Committee is comprised of two

independent non-executive Directors and one executive Director, namely:

Wong Ying Seung, Asiong (Chairman)
Wen Louis
Yau Yan Ming, Raymond

The Remuneration Committee held two meetings in 2009. Details of the attendance

of the Remuneration Committee meetings are set out below:

Committee members Attendance
Wong Ying Seung, Asiong 2/2
Shum Ming Choy (resigned with effect from 22 April 2009) 12
Wen Louis (appointed with effect from 22 April 2009) 12
Yau Yan Ming, Raymond 212

NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

The Company does not have a nomination committee for the appointment of
directors. The Board is empowered under the Company's Articles of Association to
appoint any person as a Director either to fill a casual vacancy or as an additional
member of the Board. Candidates to be selected and recommended are those who
are experienced, competent and able to fulfill the fiduciary duties and duties of skill,
care and diligence to a standard required for listed companies’ Directors. By
convention, a proposal for the appointment of a new director with detailed
information of his/her educational and professional qualifications and the relevant
working experience is submitted to the Board for decision making. The Board
believes that it has sufficient measures to evaluate the proposed appointment and to
conclude their decision objectively. Board meetings were held to approve the
resignations of Mr. Shum Ming Choy and Ms. Lin Wai Yi respectively and to approve
the appointments of Mr. Cheung Wing Ping and Mr. Wen Louis respectively during

the year.

FHEREE T ERBEFBREIRALAY

EENERERR L MEFMBRRRERE
FERUEER  (I2ZEFETHREZL

FABKBAMNRAABERTES 2 RFHM
HR-FR FHZEECRATKEES
PREEBL—RBMEZHMGE

RARERH  FHEE B L BUIFNT
ESR-RRTERAN B

Tk (/)

R

B 2 8

SWZESRN _SSNEFRITTMAEE ° &

WEzeEeeZEFBEOT

ZEEHE HE =

Tl 2/2

BT (R_ZEENF 1/2
Eﬁ:+:5%&)
Eﬁ:+:5§§€)

i 2 8 2/2

BEEzRE
AR EREZES - AATAEBERAA
RREESEZAAMATHAES  LUERE
FevBRTRIMERIENE - BRERE
BZEEANIRABEERBRIHZIAL
BB EMARAIESMAZNCRE BT
HEEAREERE ZENYBTEZE
ff-RRED EEFES ERERES
B BEERREATIELR FRERER
RTERG  NUMERE -EEERRTMER
RELRBREBRE2EBRD « FARRA
EERESFEER DR ESHI T E &
BERRLIEE ROAMBAERKTEEREE
REZERE-



At every annual general meeting, one-third of the Directors are subject to
retirement by rotation, provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement

at least once every three years.

AUDIT COMMITTEE
The audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”) was established in
January 2003 and written terms of reference were formulated. The primary duties of

the Audit Committee, among others, are:

(i)  to communicate with the management of the Company from time to time;

(i) to review the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Company;

(i) to review the effectiveness of its internal control systems; and

(iv) to review the interim and annual results of the Group.

The Audit Committee is comprised of three independent non-executive Directors

as at the date of this report, namely:

Cheung Wing Ping (Chairman)
Wen Louis
Yau Yan Ming, Raymond

During the year ended 3| December 2009, the Audit Committee met four times
with the external auditor and/or representatives of the management of the
Company. The attendance records of each Audit Committee member in 2009 are

set out below:

Committee members Attendance
Cheung Wing Ping (appointed with effect from 2 October 2009) 0/4
Lin Wai Yi (resigned with effect from 2 October 2009) 4/4
Shum Ming Choy (resigned with effect from 22 April 2009) 2/4
Wen Louis (appointed with effect from 22 April 2009) 2/4
Yau Yan Ming, Raymond 4/4
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The Audit Committee reviewed the Company's unaudited interim results of the six
months ended 30 June 2009 and audited annual results for the financial year ended
31 December 2009 with the conclusion that the preparations of such results have

been complied with the applicable accounting standards.

EXTERNAL AUDITOR

The Audit Committee is responsible for considering the appointment of the external
auditor and reviewing any non-audit services performed by the external auditor.
During the year, the remuneration of HK$ 1,384,000 and HK$526,000 were paid and
payable to the Company's auditor, Mazars CPA Limited for the provision of audit
services and non-audit related services (including tax services and review of interim

report and financial information) to the Group respectively.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

[t is the responsibility of the Board to ensure that the Group maintains a sound and
effective system of internal controls. The Company has formulated and adopted a
Compliance Manual and Accounting Procedures to enhance better internal control
and such Compliance Manual and Accounting Procedures would be reviewed by the
Company from time to time. The Company has also implemented practical and
effective control systems with reporting lines, reporting, responsibilities and proper
procedures. The Board, through the Audit Committee, assesses the effectiveness of
the Group's internal control system which covers all material controls, including

financial, operational and compliance control.

DIRECTORS AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR ACCOUNTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for the preparation of the financial
statements of the Group and believe that these statements which give a true and
fair view of the state of the Group's affairs and of its results. The responsibilities of
the Directors and Auditor are set out on pages 32 to 33 of this Annual Report. The
Board has adopted appropriate accounting policies and made proper estimates for
the preparation of financial statements. With the assistance of the Qualified
Accountant of the Company, the Directors ensure timely publication of financial

statements of the Group.
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GOING CONCERN

The Directors confirm that, to the best of their knowledge, information and belief
and having made all reasonable enquiries, they are not aware of any material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cause significant doubt upon
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.The Board therefore continues
to adopt the going concern approach in preparing the financial statements for the

financial year of 2009.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS
The Company has established the following channels to communicate with

shareholders:

(i) corporate information is made available on its own website (http://

www.willie273.com);

(i) company announcements are made through the Stock Exchange and its own

website; and

(i) printed corporate communication such as annual report, interim report,

circulars and listing documents are sent to the shareholders.

Individual resolution has been proposed by the Chairman in the general meetings
for each substantial issue. At the general meetings of the Company, the Chairman of
the Company and/or the members of the Board were available to answer questions

raised by the shareholders.

VOTING BY POLL
All resolutions put forward at the general meetings of the Company were voted by
way of poll and the announcements on the poll vote results were made by the

Company after the respective general meetings in the manner prescribed under

Rule 13.39(5) of the Listing Rules.

On behalf of the Board

Willie International Holdings Limited

King Phillip

Managing Director

19 April 2010
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To the members of
Willie International Holdings Limited

(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Willie International
Holdings Limited (the "Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) set out on pages 34 to 142, which comprise the consolidated and the
Company's statement of financial position as at 31 December 2009, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a

summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and the true and
fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This responsibility
includes designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting
and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that

are reasonable in the circumstances.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with section 14| of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report.We conducted our audit in accordance

with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of

MazAars CPA L1MITED
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Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to

whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation and true and fair presentation of the
consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall

presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to

provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 3| December 2009 and of
the Group's profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance

with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Mazars CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 19 April 2010

Fung Shiu Hang
Practising Certificate number: P04793
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2009 2008
—EENE —TINF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B E TER FAT
Turnover EER 5 94,45 (341,209)
Other income HE A 6 19,412 4952
Depreciation and amor tisation expense WEREHE (24,868) (15,294)
Reversal of allo wance (Allowance) for AEEEED (BH)
doubtful debts, net B 23(b) 54,043 (103,268)
Employee benefits expense EERAM X H (10,141) (11,286)
Other operating expenses HA Q& (23,868) (98,549)
Net (losses) gains on disposal of interests HEMBARER L
in subsidiaries (B18) fasFE 32 (26,588) 545
Net fair value losses on in vestments HIEEEREZATE
held for trading EiEFE (51,563) (144,341)
Net fair value gains (losses) on in vestments RERERKRIEE R
designated as at fair value upon BATEINRZREZ
initial recognition ~HEkE (BE) F8 89,697 (21,344)
Loss on deemed disposal of interests in BIELEHLREHEEE
jointly controlled entities el (734) —
Share of results of associates FEIEB 2 ARl 2 X8 20 (1,484) —
Share of results of jointl y controlled entities JEIEEREH BB 2 & 5,662 =
Net gains (losses) arising fr om changes in REMELATEEHMES
fair value of investment properties W (BR) #8 14 19,227 (47,845)
Finance costs AR A 8 (9.961) (9,106)
Profit (Loss) before taxation BRBiADER (B58) 9 133,285 (786,745)
Taxation B I (3,940) (11,083)
Profit (Loss) fr the year Fras (BE) 12 129,345 (797,828)
Other comprehensie loss: Hitt2EESE !
Exchange differences on translation BREBIRBEL
of foreign operation HE R Z 58 4) (790)
Total comprehensive income (loss) for the year FRZEWA (EHE) AR 129,341 (798,618)




2009 4% EABEIREZERERAT
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income #R& 2 H W& &

Year ended 3| December 2009 HE—ZENF+_A=+—HBULFE

2009 2008
“EENE  ZTI)\F
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
P L TREx TET
Profit (Loss) fr the year attributable to: FRTHALEMERF (BE)
Equity holders of the Compan y ARRERFEA 129,345 (797,828)
Minority inter est DEIE R RS _ o
129,345 (797,828)
Total comprehensive income THATEEZERA
(loss) attributable to: (BB 8%
Equity holders of the Compan y ARRIERFEA 129,341 (798,618)
Minority inter est DEIREREZS _ o
129,341 (798,618)
Earnings (Loss) per share BREFN (F8)

— Basic and Diluted —EAXR#EE 13 HK$0.28i8 ;&  HK$(5.09) BT
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2009 2008
ZEENE —EEN\F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
P EE TER TET
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERERE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Investment properties BREWE [4 638,773 609,814
Property, plant and equipment ER L [5 224,805 194,961
Intangible assets BREE 18 — 131,879
Otherin vestments HRE 19 146,430 123,521
Interests in associates BERRER 20 183,459 —
Available-for-sale financial assets AL EMKEE 21 27,061 —
Prepayments for acquisition BERAMERN
of investment properties IR — 5,304
Loans receivable FEME 23 13,849 15,720
1,234,377 1,081,199
Current assets nBEE
Financial assets at fair value thr ough profit orloss EAFEFTABR < HHEEE 22 886,347 369,232
Loans receivable U E R 23 133,605 234,238
Otherreceivables H A U IR 24 416,223 44396
Cash and cash equivalents RekHeEE 196,419 167,057
1,632,594 814,923
Current liabilities poEIA=N
Financial liabilities at fair value BATE ARSI
through profit or loss =R 22 — 12,270
Other payables H At & < 508 25 11,496 23242
Tax payable & {51 75 3K 688 1,237
Current portion of inter est-bearing bor rowings &1 8. & X 2 B8 Ef 7 26 27,306 24,384
39,490 61,133
Net current assets FRBEE 1,593,104 753,790
Total assets less curent liabilities REENRRBEE 2,827,481 1,834,989




Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

2009 4% EABEIREZERERAT
SRE BRI ERE

At 31 December 2009 R=ZZEZNF+=-A=+—H

2009 2008
—gEAE  —TINF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
P = FERT FET
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Long-term inter est-bearing bor rowings REGt BB 26 268,063 269,037
Deferred tax liabilities EEFRIEE R 27 29,398 25439
297,461 294,476
NET ASSETS FEE 2,530,020 1,540,513
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEXR®E
Share capital AR 29 59,745 38,996
Reserves 1 30 1,868,567 1,501,517
Equity attributable to equity holders AREERFE ARG
of the Company e 1,928,312 1,540,513
Minority inter est DHRRE = 30 601,708 —
TOTAL EQUITY mrER 2,530,020 1,540,513

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 19 April 2010

King Phillip
Director
E3

EZ

iES

HEFEN _T-TFEONATAARAERKE

Wong Ying Seung, Asiong

Director

Tiow
EF
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2009 2008
—EENE —EENF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B E TER FAT

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEREE

Non-current assets FRBEE
Available-for-sale financial assets A ENEEE 21 3,020 —
Convertible note receivable — loan component ~ FEMAJ AR E 8 — E R 2 16 103,827 =
Interests in subsidiaries BB AR |7 1,568,449 1,490,862
1,675,296 1,490,862

Current assets REEE
Convertible note receivable — option derivatives FEUW TR EIE — BIREOTAET R 16 65,898 —
Other receivables H b U FRIR 276 32
Cash and cash equivalents RekBeEE 49,140 59,605
115,314 59,637
Current liabilities REEE

Other payables HoAth & 15 3B 1,041 630
Due to subsidiaries ARl I EPNGIE ] |7 7,228 9518
8,269 10,148
Net current assets FREBEE 107,045 49,489
NET ASSETS REE 1,782,341 1,540,351

CAPITAL AND RESERVES BARR
Share capital L& 29 59,745 38,996
Reserves 1 30 1,722,596 1,501,355
TOTAL EQUITY MRS 1,782,341 1,540,351

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 19 April 2010

King Phillip
Director
EZ

HEFEN _T-TFENATAARAERKE
T

Wong Ying Seung, Asiong
Director
Bk
EF
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Year ended 3| December 2009 HE—ZENF+_A=+—HBULFE

2009 2008
“EENF —TTN\HF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER THET
Opening balance — Total equity at | Jan uary FOESR-— N —A—BzkEn 1,540,513 486,465
Placement of new shares, net of expenses REHK  ENBRHEX 75,265 50,301
Issue of shar es upon conversion of convertible note, FLEHR AR EBEMEITRD
net of expenses EHBRHAL 115,953 —
Issue of con vertible note, net of expenses BOTBRRER EHBREX 67,240 —
Total comprehensive income (loss) attributable AAREHFE ARG
to equity holders of the Compan y FEHBA (BR) &5 129,341 (798,618)
Rights issue , net of expenses AL - EMKREX = 580,001
Issue of consideration shar es, net of expenses BIIRERD - 2 MBRHEX = 131,840
Issue of shar es upon termination of con vertible note, Fi4% IF AJ 32 R SRR M ZATAX (D
net of expenses EHIRAX — 90,974
Capital reorganisations, net of expenses BAREMA  EHIRAX — (450)
Equity attributable to equity holders of the Compan y AR AT E ARGER 1,928,312 1,540,513
Minority inter est DERE R 601,708 —
Closing balance —Total equity at 31 December FREB-RT=-A=1+—-8H
Z B 2,530,020 1,540,513
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2009 2008
ZEEhF —TTNEF
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
P EE THER THET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES TexK
Profit (Loss) before taxation FRBADEN (BE) 133,285 (786,745)
Depreciation and amortisation expense WERBHEX S 24,868 15,294
Finance costs RE B AR 9,961 9,106
Net (gains) losses arising from changes REMEATEESEE
in fair value of investment properties (W) EBEFE (19,227) 47,845
Interest income on bank and other institutions #8717 & E b #iE 2 R B YA (an) (1,599)
(Gain) Loss on disposal of property, ME - BELERREZ
plant and equipment (fa) B8 7) 254
Net losses (gains) on disposal of interests HEMBARERZ
in subsidiaries BiE (s) 8 32 26,588 (545)
Loss on deemed disposal of interests in BIELE LR EHEEE
jointly controlled entities el E 734 —
Share of results of jointly controlled entities FEME RSB 2 ¥E (5,662) =
Share of results of associates FEIEE R AR 2 %5 1,484 —
(Reversal of) Impairment losses on property, W% - BB RE&E (BE)
plant and equipment WEEE 15 (7,079) 14,824
(Reversal of) Impairment losses on other HiRE (#E) BiE
investments BB 19 (2,600) 11,575
Discount on acquisition of subsidiaries W EEHT B A Rl 2 i — (326)
Net fair value losses on investments held RIEEEREZATE
for trading BRI 51,563 144,341
Net fair value (gains) losses on investments RERERREEREATE
designated as at fair value upon SRz REZ R FE
initial recognition (Wa) BEFHE (89,697) 21,344
(Reversal of allowance) Allowance for doubtful — (BEfE#E[E]) RERH M
debts, net HE (54,043) 103,268
(Recovery of) Bad debts (fem@) iR 68&9 (4,640) 51932
Loss on termination of convertible note BRIEAMR IR 2 B8 = 818
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2009 2008
“BRAF —TENF
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
k3 TERT TET
Changes in working capital: LEESEE
Loans receivable FE W E 5K 161,187 (69,521)
Other receivables H b e U FR0E (22,867) 39,630
Financial assets at fair value through BATEFABR MG
profit or loss BE (233,847) 9,566
Other payables H A 14 IR (11,708) (761)
Cash used in operations rEMARE (41,818) (389,700)
Tax paid BB (535) €l))
Interest income received from bank and BUERIT R E M 2
other institutions B UA 11 1,599
Net cash used in operating activities REXBARS TR (42,242) (388,132
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REXK
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEWE  BELERE (25,271) (37,875)
Purchase of investment properties EERAEME (31,428) (82,767)
Purchase of available-for-sale financial assets BEAHNENHKEE (25,020) —
Purchase of other investments BEHEMKRE (20,309) 1,131
Acquisition of subsidiaries, net of cash WEHMEAR - EMKRAEA
acquired 2Be (1,000) (95,503)
Acquisition of associates, net of cash W< A E] - EMBRATEA
acquired o (15) —
Proceeds from disposal of an investment property & 1% & ¥ % 2 FT{S ZUR 6,000 —
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and HEME  BEREHEZ
equipment P15 TRIE 63 —
Proceeds from disposal of a subsidiary & — T B2 Rl 2 BT R IE — 54
Cash received on deemed disposal of interests in 45 1 i & Kf B 2 7] &
subsidiaries Figzie 32(b) 100,000 —

Costs of issue and termination of convertible BOIRKIEATREE 2
note DN — (107)
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2009 2008
ZEEhF —TTNEF
HK$°000 HK$'000
THER FTHET
Net cash generated from (used in) REXKRE (FA)
investing activities REFE 3,020 (237,329)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES MEED
Placement of new shares, net of expenses FLEXIR - EHIRFAX 75,265 50,301
Rights issue, net of expenses H®HR - EMBRAX — 580,001
New bank loans raised FERITERN 40,000 40,000
Repayment of bank loans BRRITER (38,052) (23,416)
Repayment of other loans EREEMER = (150,000)
Interest paid on bank and other borrowings SR TREMERZFE (8,629) (7,483)
Capital reorganisations, net of expenses BEAREH  BHRAX = (450)
Net cash generated from financing activities METHMERS TR 68,584 488,953
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash REeERREZEZEM
equivalents (Rd) #H8 29,362 (136,508)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year FHZBRERREEE 167,057 304,355
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes HNEERSB 2 HE = (790)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year FRZHAEGRBEEEHE 196,419 167,057




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Year ended 3| December 2009 HE—ZENF+_A=+—HBULFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

Willie International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is a public company
incorporated in Hong Kong and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The address of the registered
office and the principal place of business of the Company are disclosed in the
corporate information of this annual report. The principal activities of the

Group are described in note 5 and 7 to the consolidated financial statements.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars,

which is the same as the functional currency of the Company.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of preparation

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”), which collective
term includes all applicable HKFRS, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKAS") and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”"), accounting principles generally accepted in
Hong Kong and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. In addition, these
consolidated financial statements also include applicable disclosures required
by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules™).

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a basis
consistent with the accounting policies adopted in the 2008 consolidated
financial statements. The adoption of the new/revised HKFRSs that are relevant
to the Group and effective from the current year had no significant effects on
the results and financial position of the Group and the Company for the
current and prior years, except that certain presentation and disclosures of
consolidated financial statements items have been revised. A summary of the

principal accounting policies adopted by the Group is set out below.
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2.  PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Basis of preparation (Contd)

HKAS | (Revised): Presentation of Financial Statements

HKAS | (Revised) requires transactions with owners to be presented
separately from all other income and expenses in a revised statement of
changes in equity. The revised standard however allows non-owner changes in
equity to be shown in a single statement (the statement of comprehensive
income) or two statements (the income statement and the statement of other
comprehensive income). The Group has elected to prepare one statement. In
addition, the revised standard requires that when comparative information is
restated or reclassified, a statement of financial position as at the beginning of
the comparative period, in addition to the statements of financial position as at
the end of the current period and the comparative period, should be
presented. Since the Group and the Company did not restate comparative
information during the year, this new requirement has no impact on the

consolidated financial statements.

HKAS 23 (Revised): Borrowing costs

HKAS 23 (Revised) eliminates the option to expense borrowing costs and
requires that borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of a qualifying asset should be capitalised as part of
the cost of that asset. The revised standard has no impact on the consolidated

financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 2: Share-based payments - Vesting conditions and
cancellations

Amendments to HKFRS 2 clarify that vesting conditions include service and
performance conditions only, and all cancellations, whether by the entity or by
other parties, should receive the same accounting treatment. The adoption of

these amendments had no impact on the consolidated financial statements.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Basis of preparation (Cont'd)

Amendments to HKAS 27: Cost of an Investment in a Subsidiary, Jointly

Controlled Entity or Associate

Amendments to HKAS 27 remove the distinction between dividends
distributed from pre- and post-acquisition profits from the definition of the
cost method and replace it with a requirement to recognise all dividends
received in profit or loss once the entity’s right to receive the dividend is
established. As from | January 2009, all dividends receivable from subsidiaries,
associates and jointly controlled entities are recognised in the Company's profit
or loss regardless of whether they are made out of the pre- or post-acquisition
profits. The carrying amount of the investment in the investee however is
assessed for impairment as a result of the investee declaring the dividend. In
accordance with the transitional provision in the amendment, the new policy is
applied only prospectively from the current period and thus no restatement is

made to prior periods.

Improvements to HKFRS (2008)

Improvements to HKFRS (2008) contain improvements to a number of
standards aiming to remove inconsistencies and clarify wording in the
standards. The adoption of those improvements had resulted in a number of

changes in the details of the Group's accounting policies.

Amendments to HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures

Amendments to HKFRS 7 require additional disclosure about fair value
measurements and liquidity risk. The fair value measurement disclosures are
presented in note 38 to the consolidated financial statements, and the liquidity
risk disclosures are not significantly impacted by the amendments. The Group
has taken advantage of the transitional provisions set out in the amendments,
under which comparative information for the newly required disclosures about
the fair value measurements of financial instruments are not provided in the

consolidated financial statements.
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2.  PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Basis of preparation (Contd)

Amendments to HK(IFRIC) 9 Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives and HKAS

39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement

Amendments to HK(IFRIC) 9 and HKAS 39 require an entity to assess
whether an embedded derivative should be separated from a host contract
when the entity reclassifies a hybrid financial asset out of the fair value through
profit or loss category. This assessment is to be made based on circumstances
that existed on the later of the date of the entity first became a party to the
contract and the date of any contract amendments that significantly change the
cash flows of the contract. The adoption of these amendments had no

significant impact on the consolidated financial statements.

HKFRS 8: Operating Segments

The standard replaces HKAS [4: Segment Reporting. It requires segment
information to be reported based on internal information used by
management to evaluate the performance of operating segments and allocate
resources to those segments. Adoption of this standard did not have any effect
on the Group’s results of operations or financial position. The Group has
determined that its operating segments are substantially the same as the

business segments previously identified under HKAS 4.

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal
reporting provided to the management. The adoption of HKFRS 8 has resulted
in the change of presentation in segment information. Comparatives for 2008

segment disclosures have been restated.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Basis of measurement

The measurement basis used in the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements is historical cost, except for investment properties, financial assets
and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, which are measured

at fair value as explained in the principal accounting policies set out below.

Basis of consolidation

These consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of
the Company and all of its subsidiaries as at 3| December each year The
financial statements of its subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting year

and using consistent accounting policies as the Company.

All intra-group balances, transactions, incomes and expenses and profits and
losses resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated in full. The results
of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains
control and continues to be consolidated until the date that such control

ceased.

Minority interest represents the portion of profit or loss and net assets not
held by the Group and are presented separately in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income and within equity in the consolidated statement of
financial position, separately from equity holders of the Company. Losses
applicable to the minority shareholder in excess of the minority shareholder’s
interest in the subsidiary’s equity are allocated against the interests of the
Group except to the extent that the minority shareholder has a binding
obligation and is able to make an additional investment to cover the losses. If
the subsidiary subsequently reports profits, the Group’s interest is allocated
with all such profits until the minority's share of losses previously absorbed by

the Group has been recovered.

Year ended 3| December 2009 HE—ZENF+_A=+—HBULFE
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Business combination

Business combination represents transaction which combines two or more

TEEHEK @)

%ﬁAﬁ

separate businesses into one reporting entity. Business combinations are 7%—1 ?Eﬁ%m)& %f%é\n@?ﬁﬁ
classified into business combinations involving entities under common control REREZHER s XBAHRUETH
and business combinations not involving entities under common control. REHIEE 2 ¥B6 0

Business combinations involving entities under common control ﬁ?/? EZ%JZ&/\&T’

A business combination involving entities under common control is a business
combination in which all of the combining entities are ultimately controlled by
the same party or parties both before and after the business combination, and

that control is not transitory. The absorbing party is the entity that obtains

E%%éﬁ%éﬁﬁﬂ H%yﬁ
REES - BEHYFERECEBS
- EAHERMGEML2ESHERE

control of the other entities participating in the combination at the tEz—HREMHA  2HAHZEM
combination date, and the other entities participating in the combination are ERARBRANS - aHBREHTER

the parties being absorbed. The combination date is the date on which the

absorbing party effectively obtains control of the parties being absorbed.

Assets and liabilities obtained by absorbing party in the business combination
are recognised at their carrying amounts at the combination date as recorded

by the party being absorbed.

Any costs directly attributable to the combination are recognised as expenses

when incurred by the absorbing party.

Business combinations not involving entities under common control

A business combination not involving entities under common control is a
business combination in which all of the combining entities are not ultimately
controlled by the same party or parties both before and after the business
combination. The acquirer is the entity that obtains control of the other
entities participating in the combination at the acquisition date, and the other
entities participating in the combination are the acquirees. The acquisition date

is the date on which the acquirer effectively obtains control of the acquiree.

The cost of acquisition is measured as the aggregate of the fair values of the
assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed, equity instruments issued by the
acquirer at the acquisition date, and all the costs incurred directly attributable

to the acquisition, in exchange for control of the acquiree.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements ﬁéﬂﬁ%i&i’éﬁﬁi

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Business combination (Cont'd)

Business combinations not involving entities under common control (Contd)
The acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities are

recognised at their fair values at the acquisition date.

Where the cost of a business combination exceeds the acquirer's interest in
the fair value of the acquiree'’s identifiable net assets, the difference is
recognised as goodwill. Where the cost of a business combination is less than
the acquirer’s interest in the fair value of the acquiree's identifiable net assets,
the acquirer reassesses the measurement of the fair values of the acquiree's
identifiable net assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities and the measurement
of the cost of combinations. If after that reassessment, the cost of combination
is still less than the acquirer’s interest in the fair value of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets, the remaining difference is recognised in the profit or

loss for the current period.

Subsidiaries
A subsidiary is an entity in which the Group has the power to govern the

financial and operating policies so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

In the Company's statement of financial position, investments in subsidiaries are
stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses. The carrying amount of the
investments is reduced to its recoverable amount on an individual basis. The
results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the basis of

dividends received and receivable.

Year ended 3| December 2009 HE—ZENF+_A=+—HBULFE
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Associates
An associate is an entity in which the Group has significant influence and which

is neither a subsidiary nor a joint venture.

The Group's investment in associate is accounted for under the equity method
of accounting. The consolidated statement of comprehensive income includes
the Group’s share of the post-acquisition results of the associate for the year.
The consolidated statement of financial position includes the Group’s share of
the net assets of the associate and also goodwill. The Group discontinues
recognising its share of further losses when the Group’s share of losses of the
associate equals or exceeds the carrying amount of its interest in the associate,
which includes any long term interests that, in substance, form part of the

Group’s net investment in the associate.
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Joint venture BENT
A joint venture is a contractual arrangement whereby two or more parties BEPRAMEASIANLEEBALE
undertake an economic activity which is subject to joint control and none of KL AL R 42 %‘Jﬁfi@ﬁf?&%‘/éiﬂz
the participating parties has unilateral control over the economic activity. ER ME2EFHLELTHNE

H R I -

Jointly controlled entities

The Group's investment in jointly controlled entity is accounted for under the

R E R
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equity method of accounting. The consolidated statement of comprehensive HEAR - REERGERARAEGER
income includes the Group's share of the post-acquisition results of the jointly WREEEFAGEZAKRRZER  MA
controlled entity for the year. The consolidated statement of financial position SEEGEARZHERZFEERER

includes the Group's share of the net assets of the jointly controlled entity and

also goodwill.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements ﬁéﬂﬁ%i&%‘%ﬁﬁi

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the Group’s
share of the fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities of the acquired subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled entities.
Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries is recognised as a separate asset.
Goodwill on acquisitions of associates or jointly controlled entities is included
in interests in associates or jointly controlled entities. Goodwill is carried at
cost less accumulated impairment losses, which is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying value may be impaired. For the purpose of impairment test and
determination of gain or loss on disposal, goodwill is allocated to cash

generating units. An impairment loss on goodwill is not reversed.

Any excess of the Group's interest in the net fair value of the identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over the cost of the acquisition of
businesses, associates and jointly controlled entities at the date of acquisition,

after reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Intangible assets
Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less accumulated amortisation (where

the estimated useful life is finite) and accumulated impairment losses.

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful lives is charged to profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the assets’ estimated useful lives which are
determined by the period over which it is expected to bring economic
benefits to the Group. The intangible assets with finite useful lives are
amortised from the date they are available for use and their estimated useful

live of 49.5 years.

The Group reviews the estimated useful life and amortisation method for

these intangible assets annually and makes adjustment when necessary.

Year ended 3| December 2009 HE—ZENF+_A=+—HBULFE
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or building that are held by owner or
lessee under finance lease, to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation. These include properties held for a currently undetermined
future use and properties that are held under operating lease, which satisfy the

definition of investment property and carry at fair value.

Investment properties are stated at fair value at the end of the reporting
period. Any gain or loss arising from a change in fair value is recognised in
profit or loss. The fair value of investment property is based on a valuation by
an independent valuer who holds a recognised professional qualification and

has recent experience in the location and category of property being valued.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the investment
property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits
are expected from its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of
the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss in the year in

which the item is derecognised.

Other investments

Other investments are stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements ﬁéﬂﬁ%i&i’éﬁﬁi

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation

and accumulated impairment losses.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase
price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use. Subsequent costs are included in
the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs
and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the year in which they

are incurred.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or
when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued
use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset
(calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item) is included in profit or loss in the year in which

the item is derecognised.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost less accumulated impairment
losses of property, plant and equipment over their estimated useful lives from
the date on which they are available for use and after taking into account their

estimated residual values, using the straight-line method, at the following rates

per annum:
Leasehold land Over the unexpired term of lease
Buildings 4%

Leasehold improvements 10% - 20%

Furniture and fixtures 10% - 20%

Office equipment 33'%

Motor vehicles 25%

Yacht 10%

Year ended 3| December 2009 HE—ZENF+_A=+—HBULFE
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments and on a
trade date basis. A financial asset is derecognised when the Group's contractual
rights to future cash flows from the financial asset expire or when the Group
transfers the financial asset and the Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset. A financial liability is
derecognised only when the liability is extinguished, that is, when the obligation

specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires.

Financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include
financial assets or financial liabilities held for trading and financial assets or
financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit
or loss. They are carried at fair value, with any resultant gain and loss

recognised in profit or loss.

Financial assets or financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are
(i) acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the near future; (i) part of
a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the Group manages together
and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or (iii) derivatives
that are not financial guarantee contracts or not designated and effective

hedging instruments.

TEEHEK @)

¢WMIA
WMAKBEKATIAGNBGRZ—7 « A
IBREERMBGAGBKRERES R EE
R MBEERAEEENBEERE
BARRENEZEKEMNE MR R
SEEEERUMBEER BRI EE
BERE 2 BREBH R K B R R K
IR - M EE ERIER S EEk (B
BB WA & EERE - BUBSEIH)
o R RIETER o

BRAFEGABR A BEEEXT KA

Ty

BAVEF ARG W BEEXN KA
ERRRERECMBEELMBHAR
NERNTEREEE BERFEFA
BaMBEELMBARE - ZENH
BESXRBERATFEIER  EREBRET
WATEE 2 TR NEE -

WA EERMBRENHKETER
MARTAKRKREE : (IRAEEEH
ERzAZMNeRIAAG 2 %5
WERTHAYKERER 2 ERER
F (i IHBRREOIIBERERY
WIAZHTETR  AISBARBHEE

==
= ,

=



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Year ended 3| December 2009 HE—ZENF+_A=+—HBULFE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Financial instruments (Contd)

Financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (Cont'd)

Financial assets or financial liabilities are designated at initial recognition at fair
value through profit or loss if (i) the designation eliminates or significantly
reduces the inconsistent treatment that would otherwise arise from measuring
the assets or liabilities or recognising gains or losses on a different basis; or (ii)
they are part of a group of financial assets and / or financial liabilities that are
managed and their performance evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance
with a documented risk management strategy; or (iii) they contain embedded

derivatives that would need to be separately recorded.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables including other receivables and loans receivable are non-
derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market and are not held for trading. They are measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, except where receivables
are interest-free loans and without any fixed repayment term or the effect of
discounting would be insignificant. In such case, the receivables are stated at
cost less impairment loss. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account
any discount or premium on acquisition over the period to maturity. Gains and
losses arising from derecognition, impairment or through the amortisation

process are recognised in profit or loss.
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2.  PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Financial instruments (Cont'd)

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative financial assets that are
either designated at this category or not classified in any of the other
categories of financial assets. They are measured at fair value with changes in
value recognised as a separate component of equity until the assets are sold,
collected or otherwise disposed of, or until the assets are determined to be
impaired, at which time the cumulative gain or loss previously reported in
equity is transferred to profit or loss. Available-for-sale financial assets that do
not have a quoted market price in an active market and whose fair value
cannot be reliably measured are stated at cost less accumulated impairment

loss.

Impairment of financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group assesses whether there is
objective evidence that financial assets, other than those at fair value through
profit or loss, are impaired. The impairment loss of financial assets carried at
amortised cost is measured as the difference between the assets’ carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash flow discounted at the
financial assets’ original effective interest rate. Such impairment loss is reversed
in subsequent periods through profit or loss when an increase in the assets’
recoverable amount can be related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised, subject to a restriction that the carrying amount
of the assets at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the

amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been recognised.

Financial liabilities

The Group's financial liabilities include other payables, derivatives financial
instruments and interest-bearing borrowings. All financial liabilities except for
derivatives financial instruments are recognised initially at their fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using effective interest method,
unless the effect of discounting would be insignificant, in which case they are

stated at cost.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Year ended 3| December 2009 HE—ZENF+_A=+—HBULFE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Financial instruments (Contd)

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer of the
contract to make specified payments to reimburse the holder of the contract
for a loss the holder incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment
when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial
guarantee contract is initially recognised as deferred income within other
payable at fair value (being the transaction price, unless the fair value can
otherwise be reliably estimated). Subsequently, it is measured at the higher of
the amount initially recognised, less accumulated amortisation, and the amount
of the provision, if any, that is required to settle the commitment at the end of

the reporting period.

Convertible note

The component of the convertible note that exhibits characteristics of a
liability is recognised as a liability in the consolidated statement of financial
position, net of issue costs. On the issue of the convertible note, the fair value
of the liability component is determined using a market rate for a similar bond
that does not have a conversion option; and this amount is carried as a non-
current liability on the amortised cost basis until extinguished on conversion

or redemption.

The remainder of the proceeds is allocated to the conversion option that is
recognised and included in shareholders’ equity, net of issue costs. The value of
the conversion option carried in equity is not changed in subsequent years.
When the conversion option is exercised, the balance of the convertible note
equity reserve is transferred to share premium account or other appropriate
reserve. When the conversion option remains unexercised at the expiry date,
the balance remained in the convertible note equity reserve is transferred to
retained earnings. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss upon

conversion or expiration of the option.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd) 2. FEEHBE®)

Convertible note (Contd) Eﬁﬁﬂﬁgﬁ (&

Issue costs are apportioned between the liability and equity components of TRARBRERERIAERER
the convertible note based on the allocation of proceeds to the liability and i’\@EE'm REHINKEIEE
equity components when the instruments are first recognised. Transaction AHRBERENEERERED o BET
costs that relate to the issue of the convertible note are allocated to the AHRREERBOR SR ARG NE
liability and equity components in proportion to the allocation of proceeds. ZAREASRERGBRESTD
Cash equivalents Re%E

For the purpose of consolidated statement of cash flows, cash equivalents EReHenER  ReSERER

represent short-term highly liquid investments which are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of

changes in value.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow
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to the Group and when the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be measured BESp-130
reliably and on the following bases. TEERR -
Net income from the sale of investments at fair value through profit or loss is HERRFEFABRZREMGHRA

recognised on the transaction date when the relevant sale and purchase

contract is entered into.

Interest income from financial asset is accrued on a time basis, by reference to

the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable.

Rental income under operating leases is recognised when the properties are

let out and on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the Group's rights to

receive payment have been established.
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Year ended 3| December 2009 HE—ZENF+_A=+—HBULFE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Foreign currencies translation

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that entity
(foreign currencies) are recorded in its functional currency (i.e. the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity operates) at the rates
of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the end of each
reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period. Non-
monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost

in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and on the
translation of monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise. Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of non-
monetary items carried at fair value are included in profit or loss for the
period except for differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary
items in respect of which gains and losses are recognised directly in equity, in

which cases, the exchange differences are also recognised directly in equity.

For the purpose of presenting consolidated financial statements, the assets and
liabilities of the Group's foreign operations are expressed in Hong Kong dollars
using exchange rates prevailing on the end of the reporting period. Income
and expense items are translated at the average exchange rates for the period,
unless exchange rates fluctuated significantly during that period, in which case
the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions are used. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised as a separate component of equity
(translation reserve). Such translation differences are recognised in profit or

loss in the period in which the foreign operation is disposed of.
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2.  PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Impairment of non-financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews internal and external
sources of information to determine whether the carrying amounts of its
property, plant and equipment, intangible assets, other investments and
investments in subsidiaries have suffered an impairment loss or impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists or may be reduced. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated, based on
the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and value in use. Where it is not
possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the smallest group of assets that

generates cash flows independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).

If the recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-generating unit is estimated to
be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset or cash-
generating unit is reduced to its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are
recognised as an expense immediately, except where the relevant asset is
carried at valuation in which case the impairment loss is treated as a

revaluation decrease.

A reversal of impairment loss is limited to the carrying amount of the asset or
cash-generating unit that would have been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised in prior years. Reversal of impairment loss is recognised as
income immediately, except where the relevant asset is carried at valuation, in

which case the reversal of impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase.

R e MR

TEEHEK @)

FHBEERE
REERBHEER - TEERT ALK
NEBEARER  NETEME  BER
R BREE  EMRERRHELR
AlZREZEREERSAEMRERSSE
BRIALAMERREBECTBRE
FARER D o MEEEFLRSR - K
SERRBZBEEL A TFEREERA
FEAEEURSERE) et Hal
BE%E - WELGEENEE T KE
2B AEERAEERBUELRER
EvRNEEAS B-EARSELE
fi) < AT E £ -

st EEL—EREELEM 2K
AEeRERERAE  MZBEEXR
cEABEN RAEMBEEETRE
SR REBENSERRRX - M
AREERMGEEINR  ARESRERAS
EffRD

REERBEO 2RI RBAZEER
ReELBUEBEFREY ERIRE
EEMEEE < REE - HESRED
HEEABUA  EHEBEERGEE
IRk - BUREBERERASEMEM -



2009 3 EFIEIBRIZRARAA

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements ﬁéﬂﬁ%i&%‘%ﬁﬁi

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs incurred, net of any investment income on the temporary
investment of the specific borrowings, that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e. assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use
or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. Capitalisation of such
borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale. All other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense

in the period in which they are incurred.

Leasing
Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other

leases are classified as operating leases.

As lessor

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recorded as receivables at
the amount of the Group's net investment in the leases. Finance lease income
is allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of

return on the Group's net investment outstanding in respect of the leases.

As lessee

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets of the Group at the
lower of the fair value of the leased assets and the present value of the
minimum lease payments. The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in
the consolidated statement of financial position as finance lease obligation.
Finance charges, which represent the difference between the total leasing
commitments and the fair value of the assets acquired, are charged to profit or
loss over the term of the relevant lease so as to produce a constant periodic
rate of charge on the remaining balance of the obligations for each accounting

period.

Year ended 3| December 2009 HE—ZENF+_A=+—HBULFE
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Leasing (Contd)

As lessee (Contd)
Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to profit or loss on a

straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

Employee benefits

Defined contribution plans

The obligations for contributions to defined contribution retirement scheme
are recognised as an expense in profit or loss as incurred and are reduced by
contributions forfeited by those employees who leave the scheme prior the
contributions are vested fully in those employees. The assets of the scheme are

held separately from those of the Group in an independent administered fund.

Long service payments

The Group'’s net obligation in respect of long service payments under the
Employment Ordinance is the amounts of future benefit that employees have
earned in return for their services in the current and prior periods. The
obligation is calculated using the projected unit credit method and discounted
to its present value and after deducting the fair value of any related assets,

including those retirement scheme benefit.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Taxation

The charge for current income tax is based on the results for the year as
adjusted for items that are non-assessable or disallowed. It is calculated using
tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the

reporting period.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of the reporting period between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. The deferred tax liabilities or assets are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is recovered or
liability is settled, based on the tax rates and the tax laws that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. Deferred
tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, tax

losses and credits can be utilised.

No deferred tax is provided for temporary differences arising from goodwill,
the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction other than a
business combination and that affecting neither accounting nor taxable profits,
and investment in subsidiaries to the extent that they will probably not reverse

in the foreseeable future.

Year ended 3| December 2009 HE—ZENF+_A=+—HBULFE
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2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Related parties

A party is related to the Group if

(2)

directly, or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, the party
controls, is controlled by, or is under common control with, the Group; or
has an interest in the Group that gives it significant influence over the

Group; or has joint control over the Group;

the party is an associate of the Group;

the party is a joint venture in which the Group is a venturer;

the party is a member of the key management personnel of the Group

or its parent;

the party is a close member of the family of any individual referred to in

(@) or (d);

the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly controlled or significantly
influenced by or for which significant voting power in such entity resides

with, directly or indirectly, any individual referred to in (d) or (e); or

the party is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees

of the Group, or of any entity that is a related party of the Group.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item reported in the
consolidated financial statements, are identified from the financial information
provided to the Group's most senior executive management for the purposes
of allocating resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s

various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for financial
reporting purposes unless the segments have similar economic characteristics
and are similar in respect of the nature of services, the type or class of
customers, the methods used to provide the services, and the nature of the
regulatory environment. Operating segments which are not individually

material may be aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.

Year ended 3| December 2009 HE—ZENF+_A=+—HBULFE
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3. FUTURE CHANGES IN HKFRS 3.

At the date of authorisation of these consolidated financial statements, the
HKICPA has issued a number of new/ revised HKFRSs that are not yet effective
for the current year, which the Group has not early adopted. The directors are
in the process of assessing the possible impact on the future adoption of these
new / revised HKFRSs, but are not yet in a position to reasonably estimate

their impact on the Group's consolidated financial statements.
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HKFRS | (Revised)

FRIBREERF 15 (FER])

Amendments to HKFRS |
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Amendments to HKFRS |

BEBMBREERFE 1% (BITA)

Amendments to HKFRS 2
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HKFRS 3 (Revised)

BRI BREELEIF (REFT)

HKFRS 9

BB B REERFEINR

HKAS 24 (Revised)

BB Gt ERE 245 (KERT)

HKAS 27 (Revised)

BRI ERE275 (KEET)

Amendments to HKAS 32
BRI F325 (BRI )

Amendments to HKAS 39

BB Gt ERE395 (BRI A)

Improvements to HKFRS 2009
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Prepayment of a Minimum Funding Requirement®
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FUTURE CHANGES IN HKFRS (Cont'd)

HK(FRIC) — Int 17

EE(BARNGEHREABEES) -
2RE1TH

HK(FRIC) — Int 19

EE(BARNGHREABEES) -
2EE19%

Amendments to HKFRS 5
included in Improvements to
HKFRSs issued in October 2008

BN IwEERF65R
(BFIK) (BRR _FTNF
TABRM I BEEM RS
AR 2 Bhe)

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | July 2009

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | July 2009 or | January 2010

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2010

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | February 2010

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | July 2010

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 201 |

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2013

Distributions of non-cash Assets to Owners'
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Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity Instruments®
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

Impairment of investments

The Company assesses annually if interests in subsidiaries, associates and jointly
controlled entities have suffered any impairment in accordance with HKAS 36
and follow the guidance of HKAS 39 in determining whether amounts due
from these entities are impaired. Details of the approach are stated in the
respective accounting policies. The assessment requires an estimation of future
cash flows, including expected dividends, from the assets and the selection of
appropriate discount rates. Future changes in financial performance and

position of these entities would affect the estimation of impairment loss and
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cause the adjustments of their carrying amounts. -7 /)WEESTE et URARBERE
-
Allowance for bad and doubtful debts REHRBE

The provision policy for bad and doubtful debts of the Group is based on the

evaluation by management of the collectability of the loans receivable. A

AEBIRERBEBRRDEAREERE
HRWER K EREFE o %

considerable amount of judgement is required in assessing the ultimate FRWHEZREERE N (BETES
realisation of these receivables, including assessing the current creditworthiness EFRA B RIE BN SR R R k) i
and the past collection history of each borrower. If the financial conditions of RIELKREBHE - HEZEERAZH
these borrowers were to deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of their ability BRREL  SEERE RS - BIA
to make payments, additional allowance will be required. FHREIMEE -
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TURNOVER b, EXH

AEBRFARE T REK (BRRE
including investment holding, trading of investments, property investment and Bk BERE MERERRESRE
FR%%) REER 2 SR T

Turnover recognised from the principal activities of the Group during the year

provision of financial services are as follows:

2009 2008
—RRAE  -TINF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THER TET

Net gains (losses) from the sale of investments HEEAFEFABRZIRE
at fair value through profit or loss* Frislies (BB) F8+ 25,894 (384,030)
Interest income from loans receivable R E T2 F 2 A 25,561 29,032
Dividend income from listed investments FHREZRBEWA 6,183 3,153
Rental income Ha KA 36,813 10,636
94,451 (341,209)

* EHERATEAABEZRERSER
J81,176,886,0008 7T (ZEZE /)1 F :
518,643,000 ) BEEXK AR E HE

ki Represents the proceeds from the sale of investments at fair value through profit
or loss of HK$1,176,886,000 (2008: HK$518,543,000) less the cost of sales and
carrying amount of the investments sold of HK$I,150,992,000 (2008:

HK$902,573,000). A MIREE1,150,992,000 (ZFZN
% : 902,573,000 7T) °
OTHER INCOME 6. HftlrA
2009 2008
—2ThF —EEN\F
HK$°000 HK$'000
TERT TET
Bank interest income RITHEHA I 1,110
Other interest income H b F B A 100 489
Recovery of bad debts previously written-off 4§ [B138 7 # 85 /) 2 AR 4,640 —
Reversal of impairment losses on HiiRERMEBE
other investments 7 2,600 —
Reversal of impairment loss on property, M - BERRERESE
plant and equipment o 7,079 —
Others HAth 4,982 3353

19,412 4,952
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

The directors have been identified as the chief operating decision makers to
evaluate the performance of operating segments and to allocate resources to
those segments based on the Group's internal reporting in respect of these
segments. The directors consider trading of investments, provision of financial
services, property investment and investment holding are the Group’s major
operating segments. Segment results represent the profit earned or loss
incurred by each segment. The following analysis is the measure reported to
chief operating decision makers for the purposes of resources allocation and

assessment of segment performance.
Operating segments of the Group comprise the following:

Trading of investments Purchase and sale of securities and provision of
securities services

Provision of financial Provision of loan financing services
services

Property investment Holding properties for rental and capital
appreciation

Investment holding Holding investments for dividend and investment

income and capital appreciation

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and allocating resources
between segments, the Group'’s senior executive management monitors the
results, assets and liabilities attributable to each reportable segment on the

following bases:

Segment assets include all tangible, intangible assets, financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, loans and other receivables. Segment liabilities include
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, other payables, interest-

bearing borrowings and tax payables.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reporting segments with reference
to sales generated by those segments and the expenses incurred by those
segments or which otherwise arise from the depreciation or amortisation of

assets attributable to those segments.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd) 7. SEER
Operating segments ReENE
An analysis of the Group's results by operating segments is set out below. TXERBENREANNNEREED
#r o
Year ended 3| December 2009 HE-SENF+t-A=t-HLEE
Provision of
financial
Trading of services Property [nvestment
investments Rt investment holding Unallocated Total
BERE cREH NERE REZR Vx| st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TR TR TR
Segment revenue PERA
Turnover = 32,077 25,561 36,813 — — 94451
Other income HAMA 233 4,642 11,449 2611 471 19412
Total revenue LN+ 32310 30,203 48,262 2611 417 113,863
Segment results PEXE 72,080 83,582 45,993 (8,934) (26,331) 166,390
Net losses on disposal of HERBAA
interests in subsidiaries ER/BRRE - - - (26,588) - (26,588)
Loss on deemed disposal BELELR
of interests in jointly B ERER
controlled entities bl = = — (734) — (734)
Share of results of jointly FE{R £ R
controlled entities BR/EE = = = 5,662 - 5,662
Share of results of associates EiBERAR EE = = = (1,484) = (1,484)
Finance costs RERK — — = = (9.961) (9.961)
Profit before taxation BH AN 133,285
Taxation #a - - (3,940) - - (3,940)

Profit for the year ERigi 129,345
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R e MR

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd) 7. 2EER#E
Operating segments (Cont'd) RELE (8
Year ended 31 December 2008 (restated) BE_ZZ\F+_A=t—-HLLEE
(E7))
Provision of
financial
Trading of services Property Investment
investments heft investment holding Unallocated Total
BERE TRRH NERE RE2K ADE h
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEm TiEm TiEm TiEm TiEm TiEm
Segment revenue PEUA
Turnover £X% (380877) 2903 10636 — — (341,209)
Other income EtlA 2239 1432 203 1078 — 4952
Total revenue LNt (378,638) 30464 10,839 1,078 = (336,257)
Segment results PEXE (43431 (125,192) (51,001 (8.896) (23,65) (751,785)
Gain on disposal of interest HEMBAR
in a subsidiary Ba - - - 545 - 545
Impairment losses on other iR E ZHE
investments ER - - = (11575) - (11575)
Impairment losses on property, 0% BER&E
plant and equipment LREER - - (14824) - . (14824)
Finance costs RERK — — — — (9,106) (9,106)
Loss before taxation BRHAIERE (786,745)
Taxation il = — (11,083) — — (11,083)
Loss for the year ERNER (797828)
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Year ended 3| December 2009 HE—ZENF+_A=+—HBULFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd) 7.

Operating segments (Contd)
An analysis of the Group's assets and liabilities by operating segments is set

out below.

At 3| December 2009

PEER (&)

ges8 (8

AEBREED A

I D ZEERBED

WESIIE o

R-ZEAE+ZA=1—-H

Provision of
Trading of financial Property Investment
investments services investment holding Total
EERE RHUSBRE MERE REEZER #st
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TER TR TR TR FTER
Assets gE
Segment assets NREE 932,296 529,825 773,793 316,047 2,551,961
Interests in associates  Hf & A A& — = = 183,459 183,459
Unallocated assets ANEEE — — — — 131,551
Total assets mEE 2,866,971
Liabilities B
Segment liabilities DEEE (3,888) (545) (255,337) (30,742) (290,512)
Unallocated liabilites KD BELEE — — — — (46,439)
Total liabilities N=Li (336,951)
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7.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Contd)

R e MR

7. 2RER®

Operating segments (Cont'd) RELE (8
At 31 December 2008 (restated) RZZZENF+_A=+—H (&5
Provision of
Trading of financial Property Investment
investments services investment holding Total
EERE RESRRS MERE BREZEK st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FTET TET TET TET
Assets BE
Segment assets DEEE 383,870 348,974 749,539 340,482 1,822,865
Unallocated assets ANBEE — — — — 73,257
Total assets BEE 1,896,122
Liabilities =N
Segment liabilities vk h=L (19,132) (440) (269,213) (34,905) (323,690)
Unallocated liabilitles ~ AHEEE — — — — (31,919)
Total liabilities mefk (355,609)
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd) 7. SEER B
Operating segments (Contd) ReEsE (B)
An analysis of the Group's other segment information by operating segments is AEERLEDEE S 2 EM D EER
set out below. FHMT -
Year ended 3| December 2009 HE-SENF+t-A=t-HLEE
Provision of
Trading of financial Property [nvestment
investments services investment holding Unallocated Total
RERE RHESBER NERE REEZR AOE @it
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEn TR TR TR TR TR
Additions to non-current assets ~ AEFREEE - - 55,387 20320 6,836 82,543
Amortisation expense 55 = = = = 1,418 1,418
Depreciation expense mEXM = — 12,740 — 10,710 23,450
Net gains arising from changes RENFATE
in fair value of investment 2HELL
properties s F8 — — (19.227) — = (19.227)
Reversal of allowance AEABRD
for doubtful debts, net FE = (54,043) = = - (54,043)
Recovery of bad debts ekt - (4,640) - - - (4,640)
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Year ended 3| December 2009 BE-FENF+-A=+—-HLFE
7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd) 7. 2EER#E
Operating segments (Cont'd) ReEsE(E)
Year ended 3| December 2008 (restated) BE_ZZ\F+_A=t—-HLLEE
(Z51)
Provision of
Trading of financial Property Investment
investments services investment holding Unallocated Total
BERE RESREK UES & REZK AN st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
TEL TEL TEL TEL TEL TiEn
Additions to non-current assets  FEFRDEE - - 501,184 2,131 17512 539827
Amortisation expense Bas i = = 2747 = 2747
Depreciation expense mELH = 5695 = 6,852 12,547
Net losses arising from changes RENEATE
in fair value of investment FHELL
properties ERTE . 47,845 . - 47,845
Allowance for doubtful debts RERRE - 103268 - — - 103268
Bad debts Sk 51932 - - — 51931
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd)

Geographical segments
The Group’s investment properties are principally located in Hong Kong and
the People's Republic of China (the “PRC").Trading of investments, investment

holding and provision of financial services are carried out in Hong Kong.

The following table sets out information about the geographical location of (i)
the Group's turnover from external customers and (ii) the Group's investment
properties, property, plant and equipment, intangible assets, other investments
and prepayments for acquisition of investment properties (“Specified Non-
current Assets”). The geographical location of customers is based on the
location at which the services were provided. The geographical location of the
Specified Non-current Assets is based on the physical location of the assets, in
the case of investment properties, property, plant and equipment, other
investments and intangible assets, is based on the location of the operation to

which they are allocated.

An analysis of the Group's turnover from external customers by geographical

location is set out below:

Year ended 3| December 2009 HE—ZENF+_A=+—HBULFE

PEER (&)

WESE
AEBZREMEFENNBERTE
ARKME ([FE]) - EERE RE
ERREHSRREINEBRET -

TREFNBHITEEREIARF 28
FERMNAKREZRENE VX B
Eh&f BYEE HURERUE
RENMELEANFTE(HEFRDE
ENOHEUEEN -BPHMENE
ERNRERGHAEMMET - MEEHF
RBBENMBUEEAREEERMA
WHET  HAREDNE WX HE
wf - HtBRERENEE AR
BNAEEAEREMAEHAHET -

AEBRENBEPHNE RBRUMIEN
EHFIMOT

2009 2008
ZEBhE —TENFE

HK$°000 HK$'000

THET THET

Hong Kong N 89,834 (342,075)
PRC a2 4,617 866

94,451 (341,209)
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Contd) 7.

Geographical segments (Cont'd)
The following is an analysis of the carrying amount of Specified Non-current

Assets, additions to property, plant and equipment and investment properties,

R e MR

PEER (@)

wEDE (E
TRARBEMERES D NETEIFR
PEE FEVE  WERREARK

analysed by the geographical area in which the assets are located: EMEZEREAN
Additions to
Specified property, plant and Additions to
Non-current Assets equipment investment properties
EEFRDEE RENE BERRE RERENE
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
“ERNE -EEN\F CZBEAE 0 TR\ ZERAE TR\
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THAL TR TR TR TR
(restated)
(&31)
Hong Kong & 892,796 817,597 25,492 162490 36,732 237,542
PRC HE 117,212 247,882 10 47 — 118,617
1,010,008 1,065,479 25,502 162,537 36,732 356,159
Information about major customers EHTEZEFNER

Included in the turnover of provision of financial services and property
investment segments of approximately HK$62,374,000 (2008: HK$39,668,000)
are turnover of approximately HK$25,399,000 (2008: HK$5,615,000) which
arose from interest and rental income from the Group's two (2008: one)

largest customers.

AAREERBRBRNEREIEZE
¥%5462,374,0008 L (ZEENF :
39,668,000/ ) RREAREEMA (=
EEN\F —F)FERPZFEBRASE
Yo A #925,399,0008 T (ZEFENF .
5,615,000/ L) °
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FINANCE COSTS 8. BMEMAK
2009 2008
=t 1 JX I
HK$°000 HK$'000
THER THET
Interests on: FE :
Bank and other borrowings wholly ARBFANEEERZRT
repayable within five years REAER 969 696
Bank and other borrowings wholly AR FREBER T
repayable over five years RE A &R 7,246 6,787
Convertible note QE &3 1,746 1,623

9,961 9,106
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9. PROFIT (LOSS) BEFORE TAXATION

R e MR

9. BRBALRF (BR)

2009 2008
—EBRhE —TENF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT THET
This is stated after charging: MR T 5IEE
Auditor's remuneration G A 1,624 |,468
Contributions to MPF Scheme R E AT EI K 319 309
Depreciation of property, plant and FEANE RBHZ T
equipment included in depreciation and ME - BB R&E
amortisation expense e 23,450 12,547
Amortisation of intangible assets FEANE RBHZ B
included in depreciation and BREE
amortisation expense g 1,418 2,747
Operating lease charges on: REMNER -
Equipment R 72 68
Office premises WAEME = 759
Bad debts R — 51,932
Loss on termination of convertible note BRI MRRIR 2 B8 — 818
Impairment losses on other investments FAHMRE S HE
included in other operating expenses Hinix & 2 BEERE — 11,575
Impairment losses on property, plant and FTAEMAS & K
equipment included in other operating ME - BEREEZ
expenses HERE — 14,824
Direct operating expenses relating to BHREEME2KBAZ
investment properties REMENEELE
that generated rental income X 3,995 2,421
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10. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS 10. EEREEH
Directors’ emoluments EEMe
The aggregate amount of emoluments received or receivable by the ARRESERFIEK 2B < B E N
Company's directors are as follows: e
2009 —E2ENF
Salaries,
allowances
and benefits Retirement
in kind scheme Long
Directors’ e contributions service
fees )= 4::313 Rk payment Total
BN BNAE SRR RERES st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$000 HK$°000
FER TER TR FER FERT
Executive directors HTEE
Chuang Yueheng, Henry — $E R — 1,800 9 — 1,809
King Phillip £ — 420 12 - 432
Wong Ying Seung, Asiong i — 900 12 — 912
Wang Lin FH# — 240 12 — 252
Independent BUFHT
non-executive directors ~E=
Liu Jian 2l 120 — — — 120
YauYan Ming, Raymond ~ Ef Z 83 120 — — — 120
Cheung Wing Ping R
(appointed on 2 (RZZZTh%F
October 2009) +AZHEZF) 30 — — — 30
Wen Louis (appointed mE (RZETNE
on 22 April 2009) MA=-+_EZT) 80 — — — 80
Lin Wai Yi (resigned EZE (RZTThEF
on 2 October 2009) + A= BEHT) 90 — — — 90
Shum Ming Choy (resigned 2887 (RZZENE
on 22 April 2009) MA-+-HEF) 40 — — — 40

480 3,360 45 = 3,885
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10. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (Contd)

R e MR

10. EEREEMS &

Directors’ emoluments (Cont'd) EExMe (&
2008 —RENF
Salaries,
allowances
and benefits
in kind Retirement Long
Directors' e scheme service
fees R contributions payment Total
ExHe ENNE RAINEEIRR  RERBE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TET TAT
Executive directors HTES
Chuang Yueheng, Henry — HE R — 2,400 12 — 2412
Lo Kan Sun (resignedon  EE (RZETN\F
23 April 2008) MAZ+=RAEE) — 280 3 298 581
King Phillip TRE — 540 12 — 552
Wong Ying Seung, Asiong T #I%f — 900 12 — 912
Wang Lin FH# — 240 12 — 252
Independent BUKBITES
non-executive directors
Lin Wai Yi EEE 120 — — — 120
Liu Jian 2 120 — — — 120
Nakajima, Toshiharu h B
(resigned on (RZEENF
23 April 2008) MA=+=HET) 8 — — — 8
Shum Ming Choy SHL 120 — — — 120
YauYan Ming, Raymond T B AR 120 — — — 120
488 4,360 51 298 5197
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10. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (Contd) 10. EEREEME (@)
EEHEEMS
Kiﬁimﬁ%§ﬁﬁﬁéﬁ%:%6:

TNFE -NE)EF  REZMeFE
ﬁﬂiX BTIME (ZFEENEF - —

Highest paid employees’ emoluments
The five highest paid employees of the Group during the year included three
(2008: four) directors, details of whose emoluments are set out above. The

emoluments of the remaining two (2008: one) highest paid employee is as

follows: Z)EeHREZHEMT ¢
2009 2008
—EEhEF —EENF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT FET
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind He  EUREYH = 720 532
Retirement scheme contributions RIRGT B0 24 [l
744 543
2009 2008
—gBnF  —TI)\4
Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 #£2% 1,000,000 7 7T 2 [
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TAXATION

Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% on the Group's
estimated assessable profits arising from Hong Kong during the year In prior
year, no provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made as the individual
companies comprising the Group have no estimated assessable profits derived

from Hong Kong.

The income tax provision in respect of operations in the PRC is calculated at
the applicable tax rates on the estimated assessable profits for both years

based on existing legislation, interpretations and practices in respect thereof.

R e MR

1. BB

FR - REEMBHETERVENCEK
MEI6E%TREBEBFNGH - NLEF
B AR AKEETENARLERE
BRI ERTEN - WL A RE
BMERER
ARTEXBOASHERIRERH
ZBITED - RBREHRFAR A
ERERNOERREFE -

2009 2008
ZEEhF —TTNEF
HK$°000 HK$'000
THER FTHET

Current tax ENEATR A

Hong Kong Profits Tax BENEH

Current year REE 106 —
Overprovision in prior years BEFEBEERE (619) —
Underprovision in prior years BEFERETR 35 —
PRC Enterprise Income Tax B b TS 463 199
(15) 199

Deferred taxation EERE
Origination of temporary differences st Z R 5,831 24,284
Changes in tax rate RSy - (629)
Benefit of tax losses recognised ERAMIBER Fm (1,876) (12,771)
3,955 10,884
Total tax charge for the year FRTIAR X B E 3,940 11,083
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I1. TAXATION (Contd) 11. BB (&)
Deferred tax recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive ERGE2ENARER ZELEHRE
income
2009 2008
—geAfE  -TINE
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER TET
Types of temporary differences: st =Ean
Depreciation allowances TERE 2,080 9,888
Fair value adjustments N ERE 3,740 5,587
Business combination EBast = 8,848
Tax losses HIEEE (1,876) (12,771)
Others Hth I (668)

3,955 10,884




WILLIE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 2009 Annual Report

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Year ended 3| December 2009 BHEZZENF+_A=T—HILFE

86

e MR MR

N

TAXATION (Cont'd) 11. HE &)
Reconciliation of tax expense BIEX LR 2009 2008
ZBRAF —EENF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TEX
Profit (Loss) before taxation BREADREN (BH) 133,285 (786,745)
Income tax at applicable tax rate % 16.5% (ZTZN\F :16.5%)
of 16.5% (2008: 16.5%) ZERAMEGTE AR 21,992 (129,813)
Non-deductible expenses A HIBR > i 2,339 34,307
Tax exempt revenue I8 #h B A — (1,168)
Unrecognised tax losses AERHIAEE — 98,938
Unrecognised temporary differences AERERUEEE (9,875) (1,326)
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses 2 F i 1E K 7 wuZ%RIEJgETE (9,968) (461)
Recognition of previously unrecognised BRBTARERZ
deferred tax assets BE (152) (3,155)
Recognition of previously unrecognised BRBTARER
deferred tax liabilities B — 14,027
Effect of different tax rates of —AREMEEERLE
a subsidiary operating Loy N O NGz
in other jurisdictions 2E (962) 437
Effect of change in tax rates MR E — (629)
Overprovision in prior years PEFEBERE (584)
Effect of share of results of associates vk )k UNCIE 245 —
Effect of share of results of jointly controlled 73 {l 2k Rl £ I & 88 %%EZ
entities TE 220
Others Hth 685 (74)
3,940 11,083

16.5%).

The applicable tax rate is the Hong Kong Profits Tax rate of 16.5% (2008:

HRAREAFTBT
NE 1 16.5%) °

SHiE16.5% (ZTF
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PROFIT (LOSS) FOR THE YEAR

Of the Group's profit for the year of HK$129,345,000 (2008: loss of
HK$797,828,000), a loss of HK$16,468,000 (2008: loss of HK$841,979,000)

has been dealt with in the financial statements of the Company.

EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic earnings (loss) per share is based on profit
attributable to equity holders of the Company for the year of 2009 of
HK$129,345,000 (2008: loss of HK$797,828,000) and the weighted average
number of 460,763,756 ordinary shares (2008: 56,831,038 ordinary shares) in

issue during the year.

The Company had no dilutive potential ordinary shares for the year of 2009
and 2008. Accordingly, the diluted earnings per share (2008: diluted loss per

share) was same as the basic earnings per share (2008: basic loss per share).

12.

13.

Frar (BR)

AEE 2 F Mg H £129,345,0007 7T
(ZZEZENF : [515797,828, 000/572)
HAE1E 4164680008 L (ZEF
F : E185841,979,000% ) EEMA
A RRTERE -

BREMN (BE)

BRERERN (BE) NE_ZTAFAR
NEERF A ARG EF129,345,000%
T (ZEZ)N\F : [515797,828,0008 L)
RENBETETBRIMETSH
460,763,756 ( = £ T N #
156,831,038f8 & ER) &

K"ﬂ%_iﬁﬁﬂi)}:%%)\ﬁﬁﬁ
EREHERE AR - At - B8R
HERN (= ‘;i;/lfﬁ I ERBEEE)
HERAXERN (ZFENF | GREX
Ei1R) AR -

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 4. RENE
2009 2008
“EEhF —TTN\F
HK$°000 HK$'000
THER THET
Fair value A¥E
At beginning of year REF] 609,814 326,500
Additions NE 36,732 86,119
Additions - acquisition of subsidiaries RE-WENBLQ — 270,040
Transfer to property, plant BREWE - lﬁ:ﬁ%&
and equipment (note 15) & (M 15) (21,000) (25,000)
Disposals HE (6,000) —
Net changes in fair value REEZEFE 19,227 (47,845)
At end of the reporting period RERBEHEH 638,773 609,814
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14.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Cont'd)

The carrying value of investment properties held by the Group at the end of

the reporting period comprised:

e MR MR

N

14, REWE (£)

REFHPEER  ARERAEZIRED
FZERBERHE

2009 2008
=11 T S Lt
HK$°000 HK$'000
TER TET
Land in Hong Kong: RN EE 2 L
Long lease KHEIFH AT 303,100 317,850
Medium-term lease R HEIFE A 218,500 176,000
521,600 493,850
Land in PRC: (ViSSP bz
Medium-term lease Y 117,173 115,964
638,773 609,814
The Group's investment properties at the end of the reporting period have AEERERBEERAZREME RS
been revalued by an independent qualified professional valuer, Roma Appraisals VRBRBEEMEMESERTEAR
Limited, on the market value basis. ARIEMEEESENME

The investment properties are currently or expected to be leased to third

parties under operating leases, further details of which are included in note 34.

Further particulars of the Group’s investment properties are included in pages
145 to 147.

REMEREIERERELEHOA
FE=F  #E— S BERARHIE34 -

AEBRENFNE - THBENE145
EE14TEH °
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I5. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. ¥ - BERKE

Leasehold  Leasehold
landand  improve-  Furniture Office
buildings ments and fixtures  equipment Motor
BEti HE B WAZ vehicles Yacht Total
k¥ NE%E  RRE R nE it @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TR TEL TR TR TR TATL
Reconciliation of carrying REEHE-
amount - year ended HEZZZ)\F
31 December 2008 TZA=+-AL%E
At beginning of year RET) 19,872 4357 3391 269 7,160 — 35,049
Additions NE = 23,605 5062 2,793 6410 5 37,875
Additions - acquisition WNE - N B
of subsidiaries NG 29,800 29 328 3303 - 91,202 124,662
Transfer from investment BRERENE
properties (note 14) (WisE 14) 25,000 — — — — = 25,000
Disposals hE — (254) — — — — (254)
Depreciation ik (1,755) (1,109) (1260) (605) (3435) (4,383) (12,547
Impairment loss HEER — — — — — (14824)  (14824)
At end of the reporting RERALEER
period 72917 26,628 7521 5760 10,135 72,000 194961
Reconciliation of carrying REEHR-
amount - year ended BE-BENE
31 December 2009 tZA=t-HLEFE
At beginning of year REA 72917 26,628 752 5760 10,135 72,000 194961
Additions NE = [1,180 5217 3697 5,408 — 25502
Transfer from investment ERERENF
properties (note |4) (K3t 14) 21,000 - - - - — 21,000
Disposals & — (133) (154) — — — (267)
Depreciation e (3271) (3.777) (2,050) (2834) (3939) (7579) (23450)
Reversal of impairment loss REEERD — — - - - 7,079 7,079
At end of the reporting period REHRMLEEH 90,646 33,898 10,534 6,623 11,604 71,500 224,805
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I5. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Contd)

Leasehold  Leasehold

15. M¥ - BEKRE B

landand  improve-  Furniture Office
buildings ments and fixtures  equipment Motor
BELt BE B BAZE vehicles Yacht Total
REF  NEKE Rk%E R RE iid At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL TAL TAL TAL TAL TAL TAL
At | January 2008 R-ZE\5-A-H
Cost A 25,758 10,032 4948 2304 8,18l — 51,223
Accurnulated depreciation ZHNERAE
and impairment loss B (5.886) (5,675) (1,557) (2,035) (1,021 — (16,174)
19,872 4357 3391 269 7,160 — 35,049
At | January 2009 RZZEZNF—-A—-H
Cost A 80,558 28,66 10338 8:400 14,588 91207 233752
Accurnulated depreciation R FTERAE
and impairment loss B (7641 (2033) (2817) (2,640) (4453) (19,207) (38791)
72917 26,628 7521 5,760 10,135 72,000 194961
At 31 December 2009 R-BRALE
+ZA=t-H
Cost A 101,559 39,566 15,381 12,09 19,99 91207 279,805
Accumulated depreciation RARERAE
and impairment loss B (10,913) (5,668) (4,847) (5,473) (8,392) (19,707) (55,000)
90,646 33,898 10,534 6,623 11,604 71,500 224,805
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Contd)

The leasehold land and buildings with a net book value of HK$42,054,000
(2008: HK$43,713,000) and HK$48,592,000 (2008: HK$29,204,000) at the end
of the reporting period are held by the Group under medium-term and long-

term lease respectively in Hong Kong.

The reversal of impairment loss was based on the lower of the recoverable
amount and the carrying amount of the yacht that have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised in prior years. The recoverable amount
was determined with reference to respective fair values of yacht estimated by

an independent professional valuer at the end of the reporting period.

15.

NE - BERRE #)

REGHLEER  AEERTHAOR
RPBAONEARACHEL W REF
< REFED 5 /42,054,0008 T (ZF
FJ\4F : 43,713,000/ 7T) % 48,592,000
BIL(ZFZE/\E 1 29,204,000%7T) °

REBRBELDNERNER AT REEE
FBEFEYERAREEENEETE
ZIREBEZBEERNE - AREEETS
2EBUEXMHEMTGERENZ RS
REAZATEEE -

CONVERTIBLE NOTE RECEIVABLE 16. B ATRAREE
The Company VAN
2009 2008
—EEZhE —EENF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THER FTET
Unlisted convertible note: FEETARRER
Loan component EFE D 103,827 —
Option derivatives, at fair value* HEMTET R ARQFER * 65,898 —
169,725 —

& At 31 December 2009, the option derivatives represent the fair value of a
conversion option derivative of HK$67,925,000, net of the fair value of a

redemption option derivative of HK$2,027,000.

* RIEFNEF-B=+—HB B
HTAEMKRBENETIACATE
67,925,000/ 7 - MR FE R BiEITAET
B AF{E2,027,000/8 T °
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6. CONVERTIBLE NOTE RECEIVABLE (Cont'd) 16. EWARBREE ()

o

On 6 October 2009, the Company entered into a conditional subscription
agreement (“Subscription Agreement”) with Cordoba Homes Limited
("Cordoba”), a then wholly owned subsidiary, for the subscription of a non-
interest bearing convertible redeemable note due 2011 with an aggregate
principal amount of HK$120,000,000 issued by Cordoba (the “Cordoba
Convertible Note"), which will entitle the Company to convert the principal
amount outstanding into new fully paid ordinary shares of Cordoba (the
“Cordoba Shares”) at an initial conversion price of HK$0.6 per Cordoba Share,
subject to adjustment. The Cordoba Convertible Note is unsecured, non-
interest bearing and will be repaid on the second anniversary following the
date of issue of the Cordoba Convertible Note (the “Cordoba Maturity
Date").

The holder of the Cordoba Convertible Note has the right to convert, the
whole or any part of the outstanding principal amount of the Cordoba
Convertible Note into the Cordoba Shares at any time from the issue date
until a date falling seven days prior to (and excluding) the Cordoba Maturity
Date.

Unless previously converted or redeemed in accordance with terms of the
Cordoba Convertible Note, Cordoba may at any time to redeem the whole or
part of the outstanding principal amount of the Cordoba Convertible Note at

its face value.

RZZEZENF+AARB  KRAHEERF
ME2ERBL ﬂf%%ﬁ@’ﬁ(ﬁ
BALERERE RS ([REBER
wl) RBURBREAZIARLER
120,000,000 TR —ZF——FH HimE
BRAEEHAARER ([HETRRE
&) AREERGRFERRB.6ET
KL RARE (AR BAEENK
SHEEARTEARO LT AR ([HE
BiH]) - REARBREBEREERAF £
E&ﬁ%%ﬁ%@ﬂﬁ&%ﬁ%aﬁﬁ
—RF ([HE2EHA])E:

ﬁ%ﬂ@%%?wﬁAﬁ%@% 2R
5 BREZA) AL H Lk
%%ﬂ&%%%%%ﬁ%%%ﬁ%

=

REMCRERBAIRERIREFELR
FEEI - R AEEERERREA
BREEEHAHIAEELASE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Year ended 3| December 2009 HE—ZENF+_A=+—HBULFE

16. CONVERTIBLE NOTE RECEIVABLE (Contd)

The Cordoba Convertible Note contains loan component and option
derivatives component. At 3| December 2009, none of the principal amount
of the Cordoba Convertible Note was converted or redeemed, and the
aggregate principal amount of the Cordoba Convertible Note outstanding at

31 December 2009 amounted to HK$120,000,000.

The fair value of the option derivatives of Cordoba Convertible Note has
been determined by Roma Appraisals Limited, an independent qualified

professional valuer; using the Black-Scholes option pricing model.

The effective interest rate of the loan component of the Cordoba Convertible

Note at initial recognition was about 8%.

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

2009 3 EFIEIBRIZRARAA

R e MR AR

16. BRIRKREE @)

TEURREREEEHE D kAR
HTARD -R-ZFEAF+-A=1
—B YERBAIAREREIASEE
RELRED  REARKRERRZE
A& %8 /&120,000,000 7T ©

TRTARERHRITETAZLYE
HBYAEREXRMEMESERFG
ARRARBEAR - FRHPETE

BRER -

TERARBRERE KRB D RINRERE
ZEBRFELNR8% °

17. BB RIER

The Company

biN/N|
2009 2008
—EThE —ETN\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FTET
Unlisted shares, at cost JEEMRRD  ARARGT 1,548,48| 1226612
Due from subsidiaries A I EPNGIE O] 911,068 1,382,021
2,459,549 2,608,633
Impairment losses* EEE * (891,100) (1,117,771)
1,568,449 1,490,862

The amounts due from subsidiaries and amounts due to subsidiaries are
unsecured and have no fixed repayment term. At the end of the reporting
period, HK$833,000 (2008: Nil) of the balance due from subsidiaries bears
interest at effective interest rate of 5% per annum (2008: Nil) and the
remaining balance is interest-free. The carrying amount of the amounts due

approximates their fair value.

B M PR B 2 ] OB B B A B 2 R 3ROR
REARLEETERY - REBHE
8 H 8330008 (“FENF )2
M B B R R AR B BR 7 R 6% (=
FENF . #)HE  BRTERLLE
RRZEAERDFERE -
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[7. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Contd)

& The impairment was recognised for interests in certain subsidiaries with an
aggregate carrying amount of HK$2,121,034,000 (before deducting the
impairment loss) (2008: HK$2,340,031,000) because these subsidiaries have
deficiency in assets and, accordingly, a portion of the interests is impaired. Due to
the improved performance of certain subsidiaries, the impairment losses carried

forward for the year was reduced by HK$226,671,000.

In the opinion of the directors, a complete list of the particulars of all
subsidiaries will be of excessive length and therefore the table below lists the
principal subsidiaries at the end of the reporting period which materially affect

the results or assets of the Group.

Particulars of

issued ordinary

R e MR

17. HEBARER (&)

* HRETHEBARIEETR @ BHkx=
BRE  RHZSHEAR (MBRRE
B8 A1) BRE £ {82,121,034,0007% T
(ZZZ )\ : 2,340,031,000% 7T ) 0
BRERARE - AR ETHERREE
BRNE - FREEMREBREDRD
226,671,0008 T °

EXZRR MRNTER2IMEMBELR
ZHAEREAR TR BRETREZT
RERPEEAHNAREXEXEESR
EAYEZIEMBRAR -

Proportion of nominal

Place of and paid up value of issued capital
Name of subsidiary incorporation share capital held by the Company
MELRER B 192 A ERITEER APRR/HEE R Principal activities
i B BRRA B BRAE B 2 Lt Bl FEXK
(Note) Directly  Indirectly
(KH5E) ¢ M
% %
Apex Novel Limited British Virgin Islands | share of US$| each — 5527  Property investment
KBRS 1REREE 1 XT2BH NERE
Bestford Properties Limited ~ Hong Kong 100 shares of HK$| each — 5527 Property holding
B 100 BB A E(E 1 87T 2 B fn NERE
Bright Majestic Limited British Virgin Islands | share of US$ ! each — 5527 Property investment
RERLES 1REREE 1 ZTBRH MERE
Clear Point Limited British Virgin Islands | share of US$!| each — 5527  Property investment
REELES 1REREE 1 XT2BH NERE
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7. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Contd)

Name of subsidiary

Place of

incorporation

2009 3% EFEBEIRERERAE

R e MR AR

Year ended 3| December 2009 HE—ZENF+_A=+—HBULFE

Particulars of
issued ordinary
and paid up

share capital

17. MEBLRER (8

Proportion of nominal
value of issued capital

held by the Company

MEARER oF AR 32 BRAEER ARRBHEE BT Principal activities
it B BRBRAZHR BRATEE 2 Lt Bl TEXH
(Note) Directly  Indirectly
(P &) & &
% %
Cordoba Homes Limited British Virgin Islands 1,676,878,606 55.27 —  Investment holding
HEREERAA RERAZHE shares of HK$0.10 each RAEER
1,676,878,606 I &k
H{E 0.10/& T2 B
China United Intemational ~ Hong Kong 53,000 shares of HK$100 each 100 —  Provision of
Administrative B 53,000 X &R EE administrative
Services Limited 100 77T 2 Bt services
ERBERRBERLDA RETH RS
Cordoba Homes Hong Kong | share of HK$| each — 5527 Money lending
Finance Limited BB 1REREE 1 BT2RR 4=
CW Financing Limited Hong Kong 458,885,041 — 5527  Money lending
(previously known B shares of HK$ | each 7
as Willie Financing 458,885,041 IR G iR
Limited) HE 1 BT Z2RA
(IR A HERRE)
Earn Best Investments British Virgin Islands | share of US$| each — 5527 Property investment
Limited REBLETES 1REREE1ETB’RR NERE
Headman Investments Hong Kong | share of HK$ | each — [00  Investment holding
Limited B 1 REREE 1 BT RH REER

BEREBERAA
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[7. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Contd)

Name of subsidiary

Place of

incorporation

Particulars of
issued ordinary
and paid up

share capital

R e MR

17. HEBARER (&)

Proportion of nominal
value of issued capital

held by the Company

P 2 ) & ot i AR 32 BRAEER ENNGESY - NE S5y Principal activities
i B BRRA R BRANE B 2 Lt B FERK
(Note) Directly  Indirectly
(F&E) k-3 CiF:3
% %
Hostbest Limited British Virgin Islands | share of US$! each — 5527 Property investment
RERLEE 1REBREE 1 ET iR NERE
International Stamps & Hong Kong 20,200 shares of HK$| each — 5527 Property investment
Coins Exchange 6 20,200 iR AR EE 178 T2 R MERE
Gallery Limited
BRBERERZS
ROERRAA
Jet Star Industries Limited Hong Kong 1,000 shares of HK$| each — 5527 Property investment
EBEXERDA B 1,000 R BREE 18T B NERE
Longtop Enterprises Limited Hong Kong | share of HK$| each — 5527 Property investment
RREXBERAA BE 1REREE 1 BT RH MERE
Million Regal Hong Kong 1,000 shares of HK$ | each — 5527  Property investment
Investment Limited £ 1,000 R G REE 18T 2 K in MERE
ERRERARLA
Pearl Decade Limited British Virgin Islands 9,615,386 shares of US$| each — [00  Trading of investments
REREXES 9,615,386 R B IR E A 1 X2 Befn BEERA
Portstar Investments Limited British Virgin Islands | share of US$!| each — 5527  Property investment

BEREERAA

KBRS

1REREE 1 ET2RH

NERE
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7. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Contd)

2009 3 EFIEIBRIZRARAA

R e MR AR

Year ended 3| December 2009 HE—ZENF+_A=+—HBULFE

Particulars of

issued ordinary

17. MEBLRER (8

Proportion of nominal

Place of and paid up value of issued capital
Name of subsidiary incorporation share capital held by the Company
MEARER oF AR 32 BRAEER ARRBHEE BT Principal activities
it B BRBRAZHR RAEE 2 LBl FERK
(Note) Directly  Indirectly
GE) & CF:3
% %
Radford Portfolio Hong Kong 10,000 shares of HK$ | each — 5527 Property holding
Management Limited B 10,000 IR G AR EE 1 8 T2 R MERE

EREEEEFARAT

Startech Business Limited

Silver Target Limited

Sun Willie Financing
Limited
MBI HEERAF]

Trade Well

Investments Limited

United Goal Investments

Limited

Uprite Limited

Wealth Champion Limited

British Virgin Islands
RBRELES

British Virgin Islands
RERLES

Hong Kong
B

British Virgin Islands
RERLES

British Virgin Islands
RERELES

British Virgin Islands
RBREULES

British Virgin Islands
RERLES

| share of US$I each
1 RBREE1FZT BN

| share of US$! each
1 REREE 1E T ZBRA

| share of HK$ | each
1 REREE 1B TR

| share of US$! each
1 REREE 1ETZBR5

| share of US$I| each
1TREBREE1ET BN
| share of US$I each
1 RBREE1EZT2ER

| share of US$! each
1 REREE 1ET2BR5

— 5527 Property investment
NERE

— 5527 Property investment
MERE

— [00  Money lending
iR

— 5527 Property investment
NERE

— 5527 Investing holding
REZEK

— 5527 Yacht owning
BR R

— 5527 Property holding

ESEC)
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17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Contd) 17. B L RESR (8

98

Name of subsidiary

Place of

incorporation

Particulars of
issued ordinary
and paid up

share capital

Proportion of nominal
value of issued capital

held by the Company

P 2 ) & ot i AR 32 BRAEER ENNGESY - NE S5y Principal activities
i B BRRA R BRANE B 2 Lt B FERK
(Note) Directly  Indirectly
(F&E) k-3 CiF:3
% %
Wealth Elegant British Virgin Islands | share of US$ ! each — 5527 Property investment
Investments Limited EBRERES 1REREEET2RR MERE
HHREERAA
Wellhand Limited Hong Kong 2 shares of HK$| each — 5527 Motor vehicles owning
B 2B IRmEE 1 BT 2RI BEAE
Willie Carpark (North Hong Kong 1,000 shares of HK$!| each — 5527 Property investment
Point) Limited 0 1,000 R GREE 1 57T 2 KA MERE

BANES (B) BRAR

Willie Resources

Incorporated

BANERERAA]

Cayman Islands

FERS

4951,408,325

shares of HK$0.10 each
4,951,408,325 i
SREMEO0.10 BT 2ikH

100 —

Investment holding

REEK

Winsy Investments Limited  British Virgin Islands | share of US$ ! each — 5527 Property investment
REREBRAA RERTES 1REREE 1 RT2iki NERE
Wiseteam Assets Limited British Virgin Islands 100 shares of US$| each — 5527  Property investment

RERLES

100 REREE 1 ZT2RH

NERE

All of the above subsidiaries operate principally in Hong Kong except for Jet

Star Industries Limited which operates principally in the PRC.

Note:  No loan capital has been issued by any of the subsidiaries.

GREBEXERAAIZETERLSE
oo LRFEMBRARIEEIEERER

=

Wit BEEAMBARETEEER -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

2009 3 EFIEIBRIZRARAA
e KRR

Year ended 3| December 2009 HE—ZENF+_A=+—HBULFE

18. BV EE

Total
At
HK$'000
FHET
Recondiliation of carrying amount AR E B 41 Bk
— year ended 3| December 2008 —BETEN\F+-RA=1T—HLLFE
At beginning of year NG 134,626
Amortisation i (2,747)
At end of the reporting period RERBPEER 131,879
Reconciliation of carrying amount REEYER
— year ended 3| December 2009 —BE-EENF+-A=+-HLEE

At beginning of year READ 131,879
Amortisation B (1,418)
Disposals (note 32(a)) HE (MaE(32a)) (130,461)
At end of the reporting period RERBEHEH =

At | January 2008 RZZEZENF—-HA—H
Costs EEN 136,000
Accumulated amortisation B 3 (1,374)
134,626

At | January 2009 RZZEThF—-—A—H
Costs ZEN 136,000
Accumulated amortisation 2t (4,121)
131,879

At 31 December 2009
Costs

Accumulated amortisation

R-ZZNE+-A=1—H
B —
R —

e
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18.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Contd)

The intangible assets represented the rights to (i) obtain the 50% of forestry
land use rights and forestry trees entitlement of three forestry sites in Simao
District, Puer City, Yunnan Province, the PRC and (i) share 50% of distributable

profits of these forests.

The forestry land use rights and forestry tree entitlement of these three

forestry tree sites are 50 years from 24 January 2007 to 23 January 2057.

e MR

18. BVEE (©)
ER

EERBRIMETEERE L
mEFE= %MMZW%Mﬂ@ﬁ%&
MARFAHE : B()ZHZZMWM250%
A B T o

% = VR MRt 2 PR PR A AR T A
AR50 B-TELF-A-1+ WA
E_FRtE-A-t=HL-

OTHER INVESTMENTS 19. HittiR&E
2009 2008
ZEENF “TTNF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHAT

At cost AR AR 5T

At beginning of year NG 123,521 113,965
Additions NE 20,309 21,131
Impairment losses EEE — (11,575)
Reversal of impairment losses B ERERE 2,600 —
At end of the reporting period REZHMEER 146,430 123,521

Other investments represent rare precious stone and artwork acquired by the

Group for long-term investment purposes.

The reversal of impairment losses was based on the lower of the carrying
amount and the recoverable amount of artwork. The recoverable amount was
determined with reference to respective fair values of artwork estimated by an

independent professional valuer as at the end of the reporting period.

HREEAGERBERIREME
BEZHAEEAREM®R

WE%E%EE%W§W%Z%EE¢
AREeR REESE - TREEHE
E%%ﬁiﬁiﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁgmmmz
RAPBEALAFEMNET °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2009 3% EFEBEIRERERAE

R e MR AR

Year ended 3| December 2009 HE—ZENF+_A=+—HBULFE

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 20. BE QTR
2009 2008
“EENE “EENEF
HK$000 HK$'000
FHET FHETT
Share of net assets fEIhEEFE 183,459 —

Details of the principal associates at the end of the reporting period are as

follows:

RERMEEENTIERLERAFFN

T

Proportion of
nominal value of

issued capital held

Place of Class of by the Group
incorporation share held FEERFC
Name of associates A AL P BITRA  Principal activities
BENRER it B 142 %8 5 HEZLA EFEXE
Best Purpose Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary shares 47.5% Investment holding
RERTEE gl REERK
Double Smart Finance Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares 47.5% Money lending
MAP AR A A B gl &

All of the above associates operate principally in Hong Kong.

TRAEBERRHEIRERELE
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20. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Contd)

Summary of financial information of associates are as follows:

20. BENRER (@)

BERRMBEBSANT :

2009 2008
ZEENE —TTNEF
HK$°000 HK$'000
TER FAET
Financial position at the end of REBHMEEB 0B
the reporting period R
Non-current assets FRBEE 14,514 —
Current assets mBEE 522,672 —
Current liabilities REARE (150,956) —
Net assets REE 386,230 —
Group's share of associates' net assets AEEEGMERRZFEE 183,459 —
Operating results for BZ+-H=1+-—H
the year ended 3| December LFEEZREXE
Revenue WA 1,649 —
Loss for the year FRERE (3,124) —
Group's share of loss of FAREE
associates for the year il =Nl S = (1,484) —




21.

2009 3 EFIEIBRIZRARAA

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #R& B #ERERMEE

Year ended

31 December 2009 HZ-TTNF+=-A=+—ALEE

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS 21, IHENKEE
Group Company
KEE R F]
2009 2008 2009 2008
—ETAE —ZTE)\F ZEEAE ZZTITN\F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TER FEIT TER FETT
Unlisted investment, at cost JEEMIRE - ARG 22,000 — — —
Club membership BMEEES -
debentures, at cost PARK AR 5T 5,061 — 3,020 —
27,061 — 3,020 —

The directors are of the opinion that as the variability in the range of
reasonable fair value estimates for the unlisted investment and club
membership debentures are significant and probabilities of the various
estimates within the range cannot be reasonably assessed and used in
estimating fair value, these investments are stated at cost less any impairment

losses.

The unlisted investment at 3|1 December 2009 represents interests in 21% of
the nominal value of the issued non-voting, redeemable participating share
capital (“Participating Share”) of an equity investee (the “Equity Investee”). The
Equity Investee is not treated as an associate because the Group did not have

the right to exercise significant influence over the Equity Investee.

EERomNFLTREREHEER
FZfEFeBEATFERENHELN A
ZEBEA SBEBENEEEZAEFIE
mEEARNFERVE  BAFREN
AR AR ER R o

R-BFAF+-A=t—HZ¥Lm
REERBERELR (REELRE
BOERER TED2ERA (24
fefn ) EM21%HEE - ARAEEE
BURREARBNEATES - 8K
RERATEREE QA
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21. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS (Contd) 21. AJHHENKEE (&)
Particulars of the Equity Investee are as follows: BRERARZARBOT !

Proportion of the
nominal value of

issued Participating

Place of Class of Share held by the Group
Company name incorporation share held rEEfFERTSH
NREH af AL S PR 45 IR A0 2B AR E B 2 b
VMS Private Investment Partner VI British Virgin Participating 21%
Limited Islands Share
(Formerly named "Sino Blaze Limited”) RERZHES S2HERH
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22. FINANCIAL ASSETS/LIABILITIES AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 22. BAFEFAEBRE2HBEE &

PROFIT OR LOSS &
Analysis of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss: BRATESAABR M BEEZ AN
T
2009 2008
=t 1 TR L G
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
s FTERT THET
Investments held for trading BEEERE
Equity securities PR 5
Listed in Hong Kong REA LT (a) 809,061 293,065
Listed overseas PRI £ 28,035 12,613
(b) 837,096 305,678
Investments designated as at fair RERBIRERE
value upon initial recognition ARAVEIRZRE
Unlisted derivative financial instruments FEMITESRTIA ()&(d) 12,766 9,612
Unlisted convertible bonds FE LA RRES (©)&(e) 36,485 53,942
49,251 63,554
886,347 369,232
Analysis of financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss: BRATHEABRZMBEEZ AT
T~
Investments held for trading FIEEERE
Unlisted derivative financial instruments FLmiTEERIA = 12,270

105



WILLIE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 2009 Annual Report

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Year ended 3| December 2009 BHEZZENF+_A=T—HILFE

106

22. FINANCIAL ASSETS / LIABILITIES AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS (Contd)

Notes:

(@)

(e)

At the end of the reporting period, the Company holds 161,655,800 shares in
Mascotte Holdings Limited (“Mascotte”) with fair value of HK$161,656,000,
representing approximately 29.61% interests in the issued share capital of
Mascotte. Mascotte is not treated as an associate because in the opinion of the
directors, the investment was acquired for trading and the Group did not have

the right to exercise significant influence over the investment.

The fair value of listed equity securities is based on quoted market prices in active

markets at the end of the reporting period.

The unlisted investments were designated as at fair value upon initial recognition

as they are managed and evaluated on fair value basis.

The fair value of unlisted derivative financial instruments is estimated using the

mark-to-market value at the end of the reporting period as reported by a broker

The fair value of unlisted convertible bonds at the end of the reporting period
using a valuation technique based on assumptions and estimates including average
stock price, risk free rate, volatility and dividend yield had been estimated by an

independent qualified professional valuer, Roma Appraisals Limited.

22. BA

R e MR

FEHABBNUBEE, &

& &

B st

(a)

RERBLEER ARABKEFHES
BAERAR([FHE]) 161,655,800/
B HEHBEEARLTHD
29.61% - REAT{E4161,656,000%
T HREFRRAREDKEUEES
EREEERERERNEALES
WERBEL TR AHERT -

EARARBHZATEDENRZRAE
BRERMGMAMERSE -

BN LT RS RATEREEE R
i S RRRR RIS R ARAT
B E -

FEMITEMBTAZRAFEDERL
A 2 /N2 MBS A2 DIEEFTHS
i

FLITARERERZRAEER LD
FEDBRAGESL  ERRR R
(BREMBYEXMHERMESRERFE
ARARMEOBRE  BRRME
KRR MR )5 E
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23. LOANS RECEIVABLE 23. EWER

Loans granted to borrowers are repayable according to repayment schedules. T“%ﬁ% AN EFRERREREER °
The balances comprise loans receivable from: AEEATRKER
2009 2008
—gThE  C2INF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
P E THERT TET
Third parties E=F () 210,679 367,226
Allowance for doubtful debts RERE B (b) (63,225) (117,268)
147,454 249,958
Less: Balances due within one B —FRREEFA
year included in current assets MBEE 2 MR (133,605) (234,238)
Non-current portion FEmEE D 13,849 15,720
Short term loans, net of provision REES  MRBELS 106,507 230,781
Instalment loans D HER 40,947 19,177
147,454 249,958
Notes: Pz
(@) At the end of the reporting period, loans receivable (I) carry effective interest (a) MERBLEAR  ERERNZEEF

ENTFEFRANREZFHE12E (ZF
f/lﬁf | BEBFREFFERGE) ;
DEEHERTEANGS  BH
33,243,000 L (ZZEZENE - ;ﬁﬁiﬁ,
A w458 - 528,000,000 T) :
PERSEERINANNER /7%%1
177,436,000 7T (ZEZE N F
359,226,000% T ) & 4E #
57,666,000 © (= £ F )1 £ :
153,635,000 L) A L% - MER
REAEER -RE2RBLER - K\
EERFES#3,502,00087T

rates ranging from around 2% per annum to 2% per annum (2008: from prime
lending rate* to 8% per annum); (2) include balances of HK$33,243,000 which
were past due over ten months (2008: HK$8,000,000 which was past due for three
months); (3) include balances of HK$ 177,436,000 (2008: HK$359,226,000) which
were within the respective maturity dates and (4) an aggregate amount of
HK$57,666,000 (2008: HK$153,635,000) were secured by listed securities, a
property and personal guarantees. The aggregate fair value of the pledged assets
was HK$3,502,000 at the end of the reporting period.

& Represents the Hong Kong dollar prime lending rate as quoted by The * EERLBEERTARAATD
Hong Kong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited from time to time. BRTmmATRERNE -
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23. LOANS RECEIVABLE (Contd)

Notes: (Contd)

(b)  The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts is as follows:

e MR

23. BRER ®
BsE : (48)
b) REEELHMT :

2009 2008

—EBhF —TE)N\F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FERT FET

At beginning of year 117,268 14,000
Increase in allowance 23,225 103,268
Reversal of allowance (77,268) =
At end of the reporting period REBRHEER 63,225 117,268

The directors assessed the collectability of loans receivable at the end of
the reporting period individually with reference to borrowers' past
collection history and current creditworthiness. An amount of
HK$63,225,000 (2008: HK$1'17,268,000) in respect of four loans (2008:
nine loans) was determined to be impaired as a result of the assessment.
In the directors’ opinion, there was no indication of deterioration in the
collectability of the remaining amount of HK$147,454,000 (2008:
HK$249,958,000) and thus no additional allowance was considered

necessary.

EENERBLERE2EERA
ZRERREHRBAEE - @R
RN ER 2 AIREREE - 5T
ERAREHANEER (ZTEN
F : NEEF)63,225,00048 T (=
TE)UF 2 117,268,000 ) #17
RE -EZRA ARLEDRE
RE#147,454,0008 T (ZFZEN
4F 1 249,958,000/& ) 2 U Bk
AEBLHR  BUBEAZEGR
BINESE -



24.

25.

OTHER RECEIVABLES

2009 4% EAIBEBERERAR
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #& Bf R Mzt

Year ended 3| December 2009 HE—ZENF+_A=+—HBULFE

24, HAtFEWRFRIE

2009 2008

“BRAF —TENF

HK$’000 HK$'000

TERT TET

Deposits and prepayments Be kBN 40,747 18,906
Subscription monies receivable on deemed BIELE—RMBRAAN

disposal of a subsidiary (note 32(b)) FEYGRIETIE (FaE 32(b) 350,000 —

Other receivables H fth & e 308 25,476 25490

416,223 44,396

None of the above assets is either past due or impaired receivable for which

there was no history of default. In the directors’ opinion, these balances are

fully recoverable.

OTHER PAYABLES

Included in other payables is an amount of HK$3,804,000 (2008: HEMENZIERE—
HK$6,774,000) payable to a securities broker of which the settlement term is

two days after trade date.

WEZEER -

25. HitEN KR

U

?
) \1

b

im]

LA BB TR E R ORRE
BBEYERR  REFRA  UEH

AN 5 B&ME A&

£ A #13,804,0007
JT (7 = 7ME 6,774,000/ 7T) 2 FELS
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26. INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS

e MR

26. STEER

2009 2008

ZBRAF —EENF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FERT TERT

Secured bank loans BHEMRITER 295,369 293421
Maturity of the above borrowings is as follows: LfERzERHAMT

2009 2008

“BRhF —EENF

HK$°000 HK$'000

FERT TiET

Within one year included in current liabilities FRN-FARBAEE 27,306 24,384

In the second year FF 27,762 24776

In the third year E=F 25,726 25,180

In the forth year SEmE 23,716 23,097

In the fifth year SN 24,215 21,026

Over five years TFENRE 166,644 174,958

Non-current portion EREBHEH 268,063 269,037

295,369 293421

Bank loans are variable rate borrowings which carry interest rates ranging
from prime lending rate* minus 3.15% to prime lending rate* and from Hong
Kong Interbank Offered Rate plus 1.5% to Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate
plus 2.85% for the year of 2009 (2008: prime lending rate* minus 3.15% to
prime lending rate* and at Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate plus 2%).

& Represents the Hong Kong dollar prime lending rate as quoted by (i) Chong Hing
Bank Limited; (ii) Wing Hang Bank, Limited; (i) The Hong Kong and Shanghai
Banking Corporation Limited; and (iv) The Bank of East Asia, Limited.

RITERREEER N_TFNFR
NFREENE- B3 IEERESRH
Zx REBRTARFEM SEZEA
BITAXKEM8R (ZFFNF &
BENE FI15EEREBNE K
BRRITARFEM2E)RE -
* BOAIRROTBRARF : (i)KFRITE
RAR ¢ (&% LSELRITERA
A R(VRZRITBRARMBOAET
SEEME -
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27. DEFERRED TAXATION 27. BEBE
The movement for the year in the Group’s net deferred tax liabilities is as FRNREEELTHEAGFELHN
follows: T
2009 2008
“2ThF —BENF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FERT TET
At beginning of year R EF]) 25,439 —
Acquisition of subsidiaries W BE B A ) — 14,555
Charge to profit or loss FFABE 3,959 10,884
At end of the reporting period REZHEHER 29,398 25,439
Recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities at the end of the reporting RERBLEEARARNECHEEER
period represent the following: BEMT:
Assets Liabilities
EE &
2009 2008 2009 2008
ZBRNE —TTN\HF ZBEAMF _—TIT)N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TER THET TER THET
Depreciation allowances WERE 312 846 (13,562) (10,734)
Fair value adjustments N ERE 64 — (8,121) (5,587)
Business combinations EBAH — (22,560) (22,572)
Tax losses HiIE B 18 14,648 12,771 — —
Others HAth — — (179) (163)
Deferred tax assets (liabilities) EERBEE (BE) 15,024 13617 (44,422) (39,056)
Offsetting i (15,024) (13,617) 15,024 13,617
Net deferred tax liabilities ELEBEaERE — (29,398) (25,439)
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BRI

27. DEFERRED TAXATION (Cont'd) 27. BEHE (&)
Unrecognised deferred tax assets arising from AERNELEHEEERE
2009 2008
=1 PR
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT THET
Deductible temporary differences B EREER 75611 10,821
Tax losses HIEEE 981,454 1,044,220
At the end of the reporting period REHMEER 1,057,065 1,055,041
28. CONVERTIBLE NOTE 28. TRKRER

On 8 June 2009, a then indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company (the
“Acquirer”) entered into a conditional share purchase agreement with
Coupeville Limited (“Coupeville”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of Heritage
International Holdings Limited (“Heritage™), to acquire 50% issued share capital
of Best Purpose Limited (“Best Purpose™), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of Heritage incorporated in the British Virgin Islands, at a total consideration of
HK$180,000,000. Best Purpose is principally engaged in investment holding.
Double Smart Finance Limited (“Double Smart”), a wholly-owned subsidiary
of Best Purpose, is principally engaged in money lending business. The total
consideration of HK$180,000,000 was satisfied by the issue of an unsecured,
2% redeemable convertible note due 2012 with an aggregate principal amount
of HK$180,000,000 by the Company (the “Willie Convertible Note"). The
initial conversion price is HK$1.39 per share which is subject to adjustment.

The acquisition was completed on 7 August 2009.

RZETNEANANA  AARERRE
BE2AMBLAR ([WEH]) BEEER
ERRAR([EE]) 22BMERA
Coupeville Limited ([Coupeville] ) 573z
—hAEGEERRBE  UNERKE
180,000,000 7T 4 8 % 2L 10 3 88 B 4 B¥
SRz EE2E KB A A Best
Purpose Limited ([Best Purposel) &j
50% B2 2 1TIX & ° Best Purpose= Z#
EREER  H2ENBARMANE
ERAR([HA]) M FERERESE
7% - #{8180,000,000& LB BA A A
BTG 858 180,000,000 TR =T —
ZEIEES AR s mEATARE
B ([EFTRRRE]) B - 952K
BRAERBKM1.39BT (ERERE) -
ERRER-_ZZAENRLATK -
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28. CONVERTIBLE NOTE (Cont'd)

The Willie Convertible Note will be repaid on the third anniversary following
its date of issue (the “Willie Maturity Date"). In addition, the holder of the
Willie Convertible Note shall have the right to convert the outstanding
principal amount of the Willie Convertible Note in whole or in part into
shares of the Company at any time commencing on the business day after the
date of issue until the business day before (and excluding) the Willie Maturity
Date on the condition that restriction on conversion in accordance with the

terms of the Willie Convertible Note were not triggered.

The Company shall have the right to redeem the whole or part of the
outstanding Willie Convertible Note at its face value at any time from issue
date until a date falling seven days prior to (and excluding) the Willie Maturity
Date.

The Willie Convertible Note contains liability component, equity component
(i.e. conversion option) and redemption option derivative. The redemption
option derivative is not closely related to the host contract as the redemption
amount is not close to the amortised cost of the liability on the redemption
date. During the year, the Willie Convertible Note was fully converted into
129,496,402 ordinary shares of the Company at the conversion price of
HK$1.39 per share.

Year ended 3| December 2009 HE—ZENF+_A=+—HBULFE

28. TRRRE (@

BAASRREEENBEERTRAR=
BE(THMBEHE]) EE - o - BA
JRREEREARRBETRARY

EXAEERFNEHA (PEEZA) A
—fE=%A W B By A8 B R AT R R AR A
AEBELAEBEEBALIERA/ALRA]
Btn ﬁﬁ h%ETMWﬂ BEBRR
BIRTR 2 SLBR B A ARR o

ARARERERTRHEERFZMA
(TREZB)ALE AR ALEER
BeHBABAIREEZRNTERE
& o

BAAMBREEREaESS  BRH
o (B REREETETA - i
RECSEEELH 8 ERHENAL
ERUEG WECDEMETARS
BRMEZDER - £R - BN TR
FREBRESRKRH1.39BTEHE
B AR RE129,496,4020% X @A o

113



WILLIE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 2009 Annual Report

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Year ended 3| December 2009 BHEZZENF+_A=T—HILFE

28. CONVERTIBLE NOTE (Cont'd)

(a) Valuation of liability component
At the date of issue, the liability component was recognised at fair value.
The fair value of liability component was calculated based on the present
value of the initial recognition contractually determined stream of future
cash flows discounted at an effective interest rate of 10.8% per annum,
which was determined with reference to the average yield of other non-
convertible notes with similar credit rating, structure and investment
characteristics. In subsequent periods, the liability component is carried at

amortised cost using the effective interest method.

(b) Valuation of redemption option derivative
Black-Scholes option pricing model is used for valuation of redemption
option derivative. The following table lists the key inputs into the model

used on the date of issuance and conversion:

R e MR

28. TRRRE (@

(a)

BENI2MHE

RETEY  AEFIRAFER
R BBEHAIZAFEDERNER
HRBANOTEEARR S RER
ERFHE108%T RNHE
B MmARENREXN2ELE
BUEERS  #BIERERHEN
Hir AREEN T RERE
E o HRHAE - AEHIRBER
MEEZBHERRANE ©

BRI TETACMHE

BoHETETAZRERARN
R-ARSNETERAGE T
REFINETREBRABRARLE

Stock price R &

Expected volatility RN

Remaining option period not RshREHR 2 HE
converted (years) HR (F)

Risk free rate A P ) 2
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AZEEHAHE :
Date of Date of
issuance conversion
17T HH BRAH
HK$1.02 & T HKS$ .14 BT
17.859% 17.667%
3 2.884
2.136% 1.720%
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28. CONVERTIBLE NOTE (Cont'd) 28. TRRERE &)
(b) Valuation of redemption option derivative (Cont'd) (b) BEHAESMETIAZMEE (&
The movement of the Willie Convertible Note for the year is set out AEERATRRER 2 ZBHHT]
below: o
AEERART
Group and Company
Liability Equity Derivative
component component component Total
aE#HD Bms TEIEND Bt
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
TER TER TER TER
At | January 2009 R-ZZETNF—-—H—H — — — —
Upon issuance BATH 140,234 67,240 (27,474) 180,000
Effective interest expenses FFAREREZ
included in finance costs EBRF B M 1,332 — — 1,332
Change in fair value NEEE — — 1,861 1,861
141,566 67,240 (25,613) 183,193
Conversion "R (141,566) (67,240) 25,613 (183,193)

As at 31 December 2009 RZBENE
+TZHA=+-H — = — —
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SHARE CAPITAL 29. RA&
Company
YN
Number of Nominal
Note ordinary shares value
P & EEREA &
HK$'000
TAT

Authorised ordinary shares BREE1ER
of HK$0.1 each: EEEER :

At | January 2008 RZZZNF—A—H 5,000,000,000 500,000
Increase during the year FERIEM 45,000,000,000 4,500,000
Capital reorganisation BAREH (49,000,000,000) (4,900,000)

At 31 December 2008 RZZETNF+=R=+—H 1,000,000,000 100,000
Increase during the year FREM (a) 9,000,000,000 900,000

At 3| December 2009 R-ZEZBAF+=A=+—H 10,000,000,000 1,000,000
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29. SHARE CAPITAL (Contd)

29.

Number of

ordinary shares

e NE)

in issue Issued Share
BRI capital premium Total
LEREE CROIRE R E At
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(g THET THET THET
Issued and fully paid ordinary BREE01ETLZ
shares of HK$0.! each: ERTRARERR
At | January 2008 RZEENE—H—H [,517931,298 151,793 1,783,791 1,935,584
Rights issue, net of expenses AR - EMBRRAX 3,267,652,593 326,765 253,236 580,001
Placement of new shares, &K - 2k
net of expenses 53 303,580,000 30,358 19,943 50,301
Issue of consideration shares, ZOIRERR - 2k
net of expenses i 960,000,000 96,000 35,840 131,840
Repurchase of shares, BERRG - 20k
net of expenses HX 5) — — —
Issue of shares upon termination ~ FLAXLE TR E R
of convertible note, Bk - 2R
net of expenses Fx 650,000,000 65,000 25974 90,974
Capital reorganisation, BAEM  EMBR
net of expenses B (6309202905)  (630920) 630470 (450)
At 31 December 2008 and R-ZEE\F+t-A=1—H
| January 2009 R=ZTNE-F—H 389,960,981 3899% 2749254 2,788,250
Placement of new shares, REHK - 2k
net of expenses 53 (b) 77,990,000 7,799 67,466 75,265
Issue of shares on conversion HERTRRER
of convertible note, mETRG
net of expenses EMBRAX 28 129,496,402 12,950 170,243 183,193
At 3| December 2009 R=ZBENF
+ZA=+—-H 597,447,383 59,745 2,986,963 3,046,708
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29.

SHARE CAPITAL (Contd)
Notes:

(a)  Pursuant to the ordinary resolution passed at extraordinary general meeting on
|7 August 2009, the authorised share capital of the Company was approved to be
increased to HK$1,000,000,000 divided into 10,000,000,000 ordinary shares of
HK$0.10 each by the creation of an additional 9,000,000,000 ordinary shares of
HK$0.10 per share.

(b) On 23 July 2009, the Company allotted and issued an aggregate of 77,990,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each for cash to independent investors at a price of
HK$ | per share.

R e MR

29. RA&
M

(a)

(%)

BERZTZNFNA+LBRERR

RBILEBRER  ARBZETE
Bfm % Bt OE B BEME N
9,000,000,000% & fXE(E0.104 T 2
98 R M 12 = 1,000,000,0008 ¢ © 5
#10,000,000,0008% FRXEEO. 107 T
(L A

RZBENE+A-+=H  ARFR
BRONOBTHERANBIREERE
R %174 ££77,990,0000% E R EE0.10
Bz EBRUATES -
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30. RESERVES 30. 1%

Group AEE

Attributable to the equity holders of the Company
ARAERHA RS

Convertible
note equity Warrant
Share Capital reserve reserve  Translation Accumulated
premium resene A BRER AR reserve losses Total
BEE AXEE ExWHE EERE  ELRR  ZHER @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$:000 HK$:000 HK$:000
TRTL  TERT  TER TR TR TR TAT

(Note a) (Note b)
(Mt a) (MiEb)

At | January 2008 RZZZ\F-A—-H 1,783,791 10,075 — 72278 —  (531472) 1334672
Rights issue, net of expenses iR - EMBRFX 253,36 — — — — — 253,236
Placement of new shares, REHR - 21k

net of expenses X 19,943 = = = = — 19,943
Issue of consideration shares, — E{TRER -

net of expenses EIRRY 35,840 — — — — — 35,840
Issue of shares upon termination Bt |E AT IRE &

of convertible note, TR -

net of expenses REAGEF 25,974 — — — — — 25,974
Issue of convertible note, BATHRRER -

net of expenses EMBRRAX — — 38,246 — — — 38,246
Termination of LA R

convertible note Ed = = (38246) = = — (38,246)
Capital reorganisation, ERER

net of expenses EMBRRAR 630,470 = = = = — 630470
Total comprehensive EN2HER

loss for the year k| = = = — (790)  (797,828)  (798618)
At 31 December 2008 RZEENE

+-A=+-H 2749254 10,075 — n (790)  (1329300) 1501517
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30.

RESERVES (Cont'd)

Group (Contd)

30. fkfE (@)

KEE(E

Attributable to the equity holders of the Company

R e MR

AAARBRBARL
Convertible
note equity ~ Warrant Minority
Share  Capital  reserve  reserve Translation Accumulated interest
Notes  premum  reserve WRREE RRER  reserve  losses Totl  HERE Total
i ROERE EXEE BREE B EiRR ZHER 0 A% &R #it
HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000 HK§'000  HK$'000 HK§'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000
Tén TEn THEr Tz TExr TExr TExr TEn  TEn
(Note a) (Note b)
(M3t a) (3 b)
At | January 2009 R-ZENE-A-H 2,749,254 10,075 — (790) (1,329,300) 1,501,517 — 1501517
Placement of new shares, REHMR
net of expenses ENRE ) 67,466 — — — — — 67,466 — 67466
Issue of convertible note, FURREE -
net of expenses EMBEX 2 - — M40 - — — 6140 — M40
lssue of shares upon comversion HLERAARFE
of convertible note, EGTeR
net of expenses BB 28 170,243 —  (67,40) — — — 103,003 — 103,003
Expiry of warrants AREEHR (b) — — - () - nm — — —
Total comprehensive (loss) EncE (B8)
income for the year WABE - - - - (4) 129345 129341 — 19
Minortty interest arising from 4R fEHEHIB
deemed disposal AREES
of subsidires DERRER - - - - - - — 601708 601,708
At 31 December 2009 R-RENF
tZB=1+-H 1,986,963 10,075 = = (794) (1,127,677) 1,868,567 601,708 2,470,275
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30. RESERVES (Contd)

30. B (&)

R e MR AR

Company VN
Convertible
note equity Warrant
Share reserve reserve  Accumulated
premium  ATEREE DIEE losses Total
BIVEE  REREE BE  2ABR Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEL FHEL FHEL FHEL FHEL
(Note a) (Note b)
GET) (& b)
At | January 2008 RZZZ\F-A—-AH 1,783,791 — 72,278 (478,198) 1,377,871
Rights issue, net of expenses #Hi - EMBRRX 253236 — — — 253236
Placement of new shares, BERR - Bk
net of expenses Fx 19943 - - - 19943
Issue of consideration shares, EIRERD - 2R
net of expenses X 35,840 = = = 35,840
Issue of shares upon RR L ATAREEM
termination of convertible B4 - B
note, net of expenses AX 25974 = = = 25974
Issue of convertible note, BITARSE
net of expenses EMBRAE — 38,246 — — 38246
Termination of convertible RAEABR
note B34 — (38,246) — — (38,246)
Capital reorganisation, BEXER
net of expenses EMBRAX 630,470 — — — 630,470
Total comprehensive ERN2EBE
loss for the year B — — — (841979)  (841979)
At 31 December 2008 RZEZN\E+-A=1—H 2,749,254 — 72278 (1,320,177) 1501355
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distribution to the shareholders.

THRR M -

30. RESERVES (Contd) 30. & (&)
Company (Cont'd) XRQTF (8)
Convertible
note equity Warrant
Share reserve reserve  Accumulated
Notes premum  ARREE ABRER losses Total
i koaE - RERE #E  RFER At
HK$’000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$000
TERT TER TER TER TER
(Note a) (Note b)
(K& a) (K& b)
At | January 2009 RZZEENF-A—H 2,749,254 — 72278 (1,320,177) 1,501,355
Placement of new shares, BREMR
net of expenses EMBRX 29(b) 67,466 — — — 67,466
Issue of convertible note, BOTAREE -
net of expenses SEIEEET 28 - 67,240 - — 67,240
Issue of shares on conversion  FLEMRA MR ZE
of convertible note, TR -
net of expenses EEIEEET 28 170,243 (67,240) — — 103,003
Expiry of warrants RIRIEE B (b) — — (72,278) 72,278 =
Total comprehensive ERLABR
loss for the year B3 — — — (16,468) (16,468)
At 3| December 2009 R-BEHEF
+-A=+-H 2,986,963 — —  (1,264367)  1,722,5%

Notes: Ptz

(@)  The application of the Company’s share premium account is governed by Section @) ARFABRHEERZEBXEBARIE
48B of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. Iz 48B IR E -

(b)  Pursuant to the warrants instrument executed by the Company on | | October o) BEARRAR-_ZEZTLF+A+—HE
2007, the Company issued 3,000,000,000 outstanding listed warrants were FEZRIIEER R - ALREETERA
expired during the year. The warrant reserve was transferred to the accumulated A17{# .2 3,000,000,00017 L i1 7 &% 1
losses thereafter. BRENE BN - ZRREZHEEELE

ERERFEHR -
(c) At the end of the reporting period, the Company has no reserves available for (o) MERBAER  KOFWEAHSIK
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to the Group Reorganisation during 2002, a share option scheme
("New Scheme") of the Company was approved on 20 November 2002 by
the shareholders of the Company and became effective on 3 January 2003.The
New Scheme is valid and effective for a period of ten years. The board of
directors of the Company may grant options to eligible employees including
directors of the Company and its subsidiaries and any other persons including
consultants, advisors, agents, customers, suppliers, etc. to subscribe for shares in
the Company. The purpose of the New Scheme is to provide incentives to

award the participants who have made contributions to the Group.

The total number of shares in respect of which options may be granted under
the New Scheme is not permitted to exceed 30% of the shares of the
Company in issue from time to time, without prior approval from the
Company's shareholders. The number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted to any individual in any 12 months period is not permitted to
exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue from time to time, without
prior approval from the Company's shareholders. Options granted to any
director, chief executive or substantial shareholder of the Company or any of
their respective associates in excess of 0.1% of the Company's share capital in
issue and having an aggregate value in excess of HK$5,000,000 must be subject

to prior approval by the Company's shareholders.

An amount of HK$ ! is payable on the grant of an option. Options may be
exercised no later than ten years from the date of grant of the share option or
the expiry date of the New Scheme, if earlier. The exercise price is determined
by the directors of the Company, and will not be less than the highest of the
closing price of the Company's shares on the date of grant, the average closing
price of the shares for the five business days immediately preceding the date of

grant and the nominal value of the shares on the date of grant.

No share option has been granted and exercised during the year or

outstanding at the end of the reporting period.

2009 3 EFIEIBRIZRARAA
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31. BRESE

BER-ZT_FHI2EEEA " K
AARRER-_ZZE-_F+—A=+H
B —THRE RER B ([Fr st 81)) - ¥R
“ET-FE-AZHANR - FiERT
FR—EER - AARESEARLE
RETSEKRES (AEARARENE
NRAZES) RAEMEMA LT (REAT
AEBR-REA P #ERS) -
NRBADRIRD - MatBl 5 ERBY
AEEFHERZ2EE -

AEARBRBRRFLMAE - REHTE
R cBBREMS R BHBETFH
BERRE AR ETRND230% @ AR
EM+—EABERTEAEAZER
ERERCBNBEAGBARRAAR
REHETRNDZ1%  WETFARFER
EX IETHABATERRANT
BEZENBMBALZBRERS R
BROBEERBARREETRAZ
0.1% - B #&{B{E#85,000,000% T
BIBREARRRIBRRE LA

BRBREAINEL -BRETEE
PR B EE T FR S 2 &b
BHA (AREERE) 1T - TREM
ARBEFETE  ATERARARR
REHBHZHHE  BORERR N
BHmAEZXE 2 FERmERRNL
RELAHCEBE=2h 2BEE -

FRYERDRITEERE  R2HRY
BEBTE R RITE 2 BE -
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32. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

R e MR

32. HEWBLE

2009 2008
—EBNF —TINF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER THET
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries (Note a) HERBAR 2 Wz (Ma) 125,120 545
Loss on deemed disposal of interests BIELEMBARIERZ
in subsidiaries (Note b) B (PHiEb) (151,708) —
Net (losses) gains on disposal of HEMBARERZ
interests in subsidiaries (B1E) kmFs (26,588) 545
(a) Disposal of subsidiaries (a) HEKBLR
2009 2008
ZEEhF —TTNF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT FHT
Net assets (liabilities) disposed of: BEHECEE (BF) 58
Intangible assets (note 18) B EE (M 18) 130,461 —
Other payables Hofth JE < FRIR (38) (491)
130,423 (491)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMB AR 2 W 125,120 545
Total consideration mRE 255,543 54
Satisfied by: PP 3D
Convertible note (Classified as financial ~ AIRRERE (DEAEATE
assets at fair value through profit or loss) FTABZAFEEE) 255,543 =
Cash e — 54
255,543 54




32. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Contd)

(@)

2009 3 EFIEIBRIZRARAA

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #R& B #ERERMEE

Year ended 3| December 2009 HE—ZENF+_A=+—HBULFE

Disposal of subsidiaries (Cont'd) (a)
Analysis of net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect of disposal

of subsidiaries is as follows:

32. HEMEBAR (B

HERBLR (8)
FERLENBRARAZRAERAES
ERANFEIFMT :

2009 2008

—EThE —EENF

HK$’000 HK$'000

THER FTET

Cash consideration HeERE — 54

On 12 May 2009, the Group entered into a share purchase agreement
with an independent third party, Marvel Century Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Mascotte, a listed company in Hong Kong, to dispose of the
entire equity interest in a then indirect wholly-owned subsidiary — Richful
Zone International Limited (“Richful Zone") together with its wholly-
owned subsidiary — Allied Loyal International Investments Limited for the
convertible note in the principal amount of HK$130,000,000 issued by
Mascotte (the “Mascotte Convertible Note").

The Mascotte Convertible Note were valuated on the date of
completion by an independent qualified professional valuer, Roma

Appraisals Limited, at HK$255,543,000.

EQ:???L@ ATZH X%E
— % B %’E Marvel Century
L|m|ted(%§% ARGHENS
BB AR)FIS ﬁ%ﬁﬂﬁ% CHEM
HeERREZE2ENBAR -2
BERERAR (ML) RE2EH
[& 72 7] —Allied Loyal International
Investments Limited® Zfizs + £
BRHEHNERTERAEER
130,000,000/ 7T 2 AT E & ([
HBMRRER]) M-

BUABKREEGEMESRRT
BAERADUEHETRKRERR
SEAE B # 5B A 255,543,000/

o

al
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32. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Contd)

(b)

Deemed disposal of subsidiaries

e MR

32. HEMBLRE (B

(b) R/HENBAA

2009 2008

ZEENE —EEN\F

HK$’000 HK$'000

TER TET

Increase in minority interest DB R 1L N 601,708 —
Loss on deemed disposal of interests in ~ RIEHEMRB AR 2

subsidiaries &8 (151,708) —

Total subscription monies receivable e R B IR 4258 450,000 —

Analysis of net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect of deemed

disposal of subsidiaries is as follows:

ERARELENBLAR RS RA
SEERAFEINMT

2009 2008

ZEEBhE —EI)N\F

HK$’000 HK$'000

THER TET

Subscription monies received B R BERIE 100,000 —

On 30 September 2009, Cordoba and Ristora Investments Limited
("Ristora”), an independent third party of the Company, entered into the
subscription agreement pursuant to which the Cordoba agreed to issue
and Ristora agreed to subscribe for 750,000,000 subscription shares of
Cordoba for the subscription price of HK$450,000,000, which constitutes
a deemed disposal of the Group's interests in Cordoba and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred as “Cordoba Group”). The disposal was
completed on |5 December 2009. Accordingly, the Company’s 100%
equity interests in Cordoba Group was diluted to 55.27% of the enlarged
issued share capital of Cordoba as at the date of completion. Further

details are set out in the Company’s circular dated 23 October 2009.

RZZFTAFNA=1AH KM
A QBB MY E = F Ristora
Investments Limited ([ Ristoral) 5]
UREHZE  KERAEETM
RistoralAl & 78 & #t 750,000,000
BRI - REER450,000,000
B BREELEARERTKE
FERBAR(SBIHEEE] D
Bm o HERZTTNE+ZA+
ARRTHK - At - KARMFRE
EENZPRERTREAEER
RECLBEARE BEITIRA255.27% °
E;ﬁ%ﬁm$ ARZZETNF
+B-+=BHEEA -
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32. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Contd)

(b)

Deemed disposal of subsidiaries (Cont'd)

The subscription price was agreed to be settled by cash. At the end of
the reporting period, HK$100,000,000 was received by Cordoba and the
remaining amount of HK$350,000,000 was recorded as other receivable.
On 16 March 2010, a further HK$50,000,000 was received from Ristora.
In addition, Cordoba, Ristora and a shareholder of Ristora, entered into a
supplemental agreement to the subscription agreement (the
“Supplemental Agreement”) to extend the time of payment of the
remaining HK$300,000,000 up to 16 September 2010. Further details of
the Supplemental Agreement are set out in the announcement of the

Company dated 16 March 2010.

33. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

(2)

As detailed in note 28 to the consolidated financial statements, the
acquisition of equity interest in Best Purpose at a consideration of
HK$ 180,000,000 was satisfied by the issue of the Willie Convertible
Note with an aggregate principal amount of HK$180,000,000 on 7
August 2009. On 2| September 2009, the Willie Convertible Note was
fully converted into 129,496,402 ordinary shares of the Company at an

initial conversion price of HK$1.39 per shares by the note holder.

As detailed in note 32(a) to the consolidated financial statements, the
disposal of 100% equity interest in Richful Zone and its wholly-owned
subsidiary was satisfied by the Mascotte Convertible Note.

32. HEMEBAR (B

(b)

RALENBE LR (8)
REELCHENRSEE - RER
HiEE R - FEEUE100,000,000
7 7T+ #2%8350,000,00078 7T A BR
SIREMEKTIE R_F—TF
=R+ XHB - B IKHRistora
50,000,000/ 7T © B4 - FWE -
R|stora&R|storaZHx$DT\ETLLE%E%
ELSEEN EAR Bk I
£ %300,000,0005% T ) # 5% B #
BEZ—ZFNATH-FH
BABENEZFRHANAR AR
—E-ZFZRF+HARE

33. TEFRERS

(a)

(b)

RIGE MR M 28R it -
“ETAFNALR $§%lﬂﬂ(,ﬁ§
Best PurposeZ #z « (LB A A%
17" % %58 180,000,0007% 7T Z B
MABRBRER 2 FAZMN - BR=

ZNENA-+—HB ZBEEFA
B F B FR.398 T B F

TEARRETRABRBAAF
129,496,402/ & 5B °

iR A M BRI E32(a) it -

HESHRE2EMBRRNEE
BEABSHETRRZEREM
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34. COMMITMENTS 34, BEIE
Capital expenditure commitments ERRXAE
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had the following capital RERMEZR  AEBFUTEREK
commitments: 1’
2009 2008
—EENE —EENF
HK$°000 HK$'000
TER TET
Contracted but not provided, net of deposit B 7] B RR4RA IS IREK
paid in the consolidated financial statements SREBTHRE MRS 62,314 36,310
Commitments under operating leases — the Group as lessee REBNRE-ARBERAFREA
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had total future minimum lease RERPLEER  REBRBAPRLE
payments under non-cancellable operating leases in respect of office FEZTIRBEEERNNEN KRR K
equipment, which are payable as follows: EH@EMT :
2009 2008
—EENE —FRNF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER TER
Within one year —FRQ 68 79
In the second to fifth years inclusive F_FEERF (PREEREMTF) 318 95
386 |74
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34. COMMITMENTS (Contd)

35.

Commitments under operating leases - the Group as lessor
At the end of the reporting period, the future aggregate minimum rental

receivables under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

34.

R (8

CERANAE-AREFERLEAA
REFPEEE  REFITHHLEHE
ARBARSERSEBOT

2009 2008

“EENE —TITNF

HK$°000 HK$'000

TER TET

Within one year —FR 21,992 16,838
In the second to fifth years inclusive EF_FEFLF (BEEEMF) 1,637 5,058
23,629 21,896

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had provided corporate
guarantees for banking facilities amounting to HK$320,330,000 (2008:
HK$296,488,000) granted to its subsidiaries, which were utilised to the extent
of HK$282,868,000 (2008: HK$250,951,000). The directors assessed the
overall exposure of the corporate guarantees granted by the Company and
considered that the fair value of such corporate guarantees is immaterial to

the financial statements of the Company.

35.

HARE

RERBEER  ARAIEHEMBLD
a] T B 5 2 $%17 B & 320,330,000/ 7T
—FZT)\F : 296,488,000/ L) IR HE A
AR - EHEBAFE R282,868,000
BT (ZFZT/)VF : 250,951,000 L) °
EETEARAKEZ AR ERBE
Bl RAZZEARERZIATEREK
NEZ A BRMEBEN -
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36. PLEDGE OF ASSETS 36. BEEKFR
At the end of the reporting period, certain assets of the Group with the REFHLEER  AEB ETEER

FERNERTAGEZ -RETH

following carrying values have been pledged to secure general banking facilities

130

granted to the Group:

B HEmREWOT :

2009 2008

“EENF —ETN\EF

HK$°000 HK$'000

TERT THET

Leasehold land and buildings MH T RETF 90,646 72917
Investment properties REME 521,600 491,050
Yacht it i 71,500 72,000
683,746 635967




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Other than disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements, the

following related party transactions were entered into by the Group during

2009 3 EFIEIBRIZRARAA

R e MR AR

Year ended 3| December 2009 HE—ZENF+_A=+—HBULFE

37. BEALRS

HEMBREMREESIN

K&EE

RERETIHEALRZMT :

the year:

(a) Properties of the Group with net book value of HK$42,054,000 (2008: (a) AKEREFERA2,054,000E T
HK$43,713,000) are occupied by a brother of a director of the Company (ZFEF/\F : 43,713,00087L) 2
for free. MERARA—LZEZZRARE

5F -

(b) Compensation of key management personnel b) FTEEBEABZME
The remuneration of executive directors and other members of key FR - POIEEREMFTEEERE
management during the year is as follows: KEZHMEMT

2009 2008

ZRRAF —TENF

HK$°000 HK$'000

TER TFET

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind ¥ & * EBI R EMH = 3,360 4,360
Long service payment RBARE 2 — 298
Contributions to MPF Scheme 5818 @ 5T K 45 51
3,405 4,709
The remuneration of executive directors and key management is HITESRFEEBRE MEBH
reviewed by the Remuneration Committee having regard to the MZEEe2EZEAABZRART

performance of individuals and market trends. GBBEL R -

(c) During the year, a personal guarantee of HK$20,000,000 (2008: ) FA KRAI—ZEZFZHEAR/K
HK$20,000,000) was provided by a brother of a director of the AR B R A FMERKRITRE R
Company for a banking facility granted to a subsidiary of the Company. & A #£1% 20,000,000 T (=&

JVE 1 20,000,000 7T) °
(d) During the year, the Group has granted a loan of HK$9,000,000 (2008: (d FR - AEER—FERERARICES

Nil) to a director of a subsidiary. Loan interest income earned during the
year was HK$103,000 (2008: Nil). The loan was fully settled on 5
October 2009.

& 79,000,000 T (ZFE/NF :
E)EF - FRRGEETNEMAR
10300087 (ZFFNF . ) ° %
ERR-_ZTNFTARAEHA

k=
/B °
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVE AND POLICIES

The Group's principal financial instruments, other than derivatives, comprise of
interest-bearing bank and other loans, cash and short-term deposits. The main
purpose of these financial instruments is to raise and maintain finance for the
Group's operations. The Group has various other financial instruments such as
loans receivable, other receivables and payables, and financial assets and
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, which arise directly from its

business activities.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are interest rate
risk, foreign currency risk, equity price risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The
Group does not have any written risk management policies and guidelines
except for loans receivable. However, the board of directors generally adopts
conservative strategies on its risk management and limit the Group’s exposure
to these risks to a minimum. The board of directors reviews and agrees

policies for managing each of these risks and they are summarised below.

Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to market risk for changes in interest rates relates
primarily to the Group's cash and short-term deposits, interest-bearing bank
and other borrowings and loans receivable. The Group does not use derivative

financial instruments to hedge its interest rate risk.

At the end of the reporting period, if interest rates had been 00 basis points
(2008: 150 basis points) higher or lower while all other variables were held
constant, the Group's net profit would decrease or increase by approximately
HK$355,000 and HK$2,422,000 respectively (2008: net loss would increase or
decrease by approximately HK$736,000 and HK$3,450,000 respectively).

e MR MR

N

38. MIXAKREREEREE

AEB FESMI A PTETAR)
BREFERTRAMES RekEH
FR-ZFeRMIAZIERAEDNAAR
SEZEBEERE - AEEAREH
themTA NERAEXBELZE
WER -~ H e R0R R IR A R
BRVEFABRRIHBEERARE -

$Eléﬂlﬂ%?EZ£xﬂ =Ll

TH M M\m HXZ’KFI&H M : 1_
ER B & //\L@JﬁéﬂM B B2 W & 5%
HEEN  NEEYETRAN AR

BEEBRRIES - AN EFE R
HEREBRRRARTRE USAKE
FEEzRBRHIEREKT - EFXE
R REAEER LA REAER 2 ARK
R BEBRIBBWMT

FERB
ARERAEREHMAE s THRERRE
EREREREBES st BRITRE
ERARBRERER - AEEWR
FRTESR T A REFE@ME -

RERBEER - fWFIE LFAZHTFR100
BE2 (CTENF : 150fHE%) Mt
FESERETE  AEEZHEMNES
Al R A 3 0 4 355,000 T K
2,422,0008 7T (ZETNF : FERE
7 Bl 3 1 3k 5 4 49 736,000 T K
3,450,000 7T) °
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVE AND POLICIES

(Cont'd)

Interest rate risk (Cont'd)

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined assuming that the change in
interest rates had occurred at the end of the reporting period and had been
applied to the exposure to interest rate risk for all financial instruments in
existence at that date. The 100 basis points (2008: 150 basis points) increase or
decrease represents management's assessment of a reasonably possible change
in interest rates over the period until the next annual end of the reporting

period. The analysis is performed on the same basis for 2008.

Foreign currency risk

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk because of securities
investments listed outside Hong Kong, derivatives financial instruments and
other receivables from a broker, which are denominated in foreign currencies,
principally the US dollars. Management considers that the Group has limited
exposure to foreign currency risk since such financial instruments are not

significant at the end of the reporting period.

Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk arising from trading of listed
securities and unlisted convertible bonds classified as investments held for
trading and investments designated as at fair value upon initial recognition in
the consolidated statement of financial position. The sensitivity analysis has

been determined based on the exposure to equity price risk.

At the end of the reporting period, if the quoted market prices of the trading
securities had been 15% (2008: |5%) higher or lower while all other variables
were held constant, the Group's net profit would increase or decrease by
approximately HK$132,952,000 (2008: net loss would decrease or increase by
approximately HK$53,943,000) as a result of changes in fair value of
investments. The Group’s sensitivity to equity price has changed significantly

from the prior year.

Year ended 3| December 2009 HE—ZENF+_A=+—HBULFE

38. BEREEEERER (&)

FERR (&)
FRBBES T BT IBRERANEEE
RERPLERRE  YCHEREHE
FARZBEEZMBeMIAREEY
FlRER - MR 100EEE (ZF
Z)\F 150 EE) EEBBFMENE
REZT-SESRBLEAHHEzE
B EE PR \FEZH
R ELEHEAT

HNERR

ARERFAUNINE (FERET) FHE

ZEBENLMELRRE  TEERT

B CH i B U 3B 7 48 42 FRIB T A SN
BB - ERZELBRIARZHRBLE
RUEEN ERERARAEERIEYZ

INERBREBR o

RAERER

AEEBRAEBRRERIREEZEH
BRABERAE D EARBEEERER
BRBERREERRATEIK KA
ZETMEFRRFLTARRESES -
FREATDHERMEE ZRAERR

B -

RERMEER  WEEBHF2MHR
BEASTHEIS% (ZEZENE : 15%)
MEMAEZERKEIE  KEB2H
FIRKE 2 R FEEEME MR
£1132,952,0008 T (ZEENEF : F5
B 318 14953,943,000% L) ° K
EE/RABRBBRERBIFEARE
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVE AND POLICIES

(Cont'd)

Equity price risk (Cont'd)

The sensitivity analysis has been determined assuming that the reasonably
possible changes in the stock market index or other relevant risk variables had
occurred at the end of the reporting period and had been applied to the
exposure to equity price risk in existence at that date. It is also assumed that
the fair values of the Group'’s investments would change in accordance with
the historical correlation with the relevant stock market index or the relevant
risk variables, that none of the Group’s securities investments would be
considered impaired as a result of a reasonably possible decrease in the
relevant stock market index or other relevant risk variables, and that all other
variables remain constant. The stated changes represent management’s
assessment of reasonably possible changes in the relevant stock market index
or the relevant risk variables over the period until the next annual end of the

reporting period. The analysis is performed on the same basis for 2008.

Credit risk
The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to loans receivable. The
carrying amounts of these balances substantially represent the Group’s

maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of the reporting period.

Management has money lending policies in place and the exposure to the
credit risk is monitored on an ongoing basis. The Group provides financial
services only with recognised, creditworthy third parties. It is the Group's
policy that all customers who wish to borrow money are subject to credit

verification procedures.

BRI

38. BIXEREEREEREE (&)

RAE®RRR (E)
BREINTCEEIRRBHERRE
iR REE A EAREHNZR
HESHEREE YERKXEDHER
RZBFEZRAERER - FERR
AEERBEBZAFEEREENAR
BmiEHRAERREE 2 F LBk
mEl ITRIRAEEZEFRESS
RARERTEHREMARRREE
AEAURTHRMKE/CTHE  TRR
MEREMEERFKTE - MIIRZED
HERENERERTEAXEMAR
RREENEET - FEZRNEER
HMECAERRESD - MR-
NEZEREELTT -

EERR
AEEEERREIEREELER - %
ERBCEAEIEEAESERERY
BEAMAEZEAGEERR -

EFEE%FE&%*%$”&$%
=ERRREE - FEBERERT

BRUZE=TNTREMERE - &
SEZBRAT  AREAKEETE
EXB MARFHABBEARER

palsl m}
ﬂ

% fmo
ﬂ

D]]
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVE AND POLICIES  38. BIXEMEEEERIE (@)

(Cont'd)

Credit risk (Cont'd)

The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual
characteristics of each borrower. The default risk of the industry and country in
which borrowers operate also has an influence on credit risk but to a lesser
extent. At the end of the reporting period, the Group had a concentration of
credit risk as 52% (2008: 36%) of the total loans receivable was due from the

Group's five largest borrowers.

The Group has limited credit risk with its money deposited in financial
institutions and brokers, which are leading and reputable and are assessed as
having low credit risk. The Group has not had any significant loss arising from
non-performance by these parties in the past and management does not

expect so in the future.

FERRK (£
AEEARGERARCREFERERE
HRAZHEUME - BRAMRETER
MEBRZXERBRAEBRTZE2EER
- BRERM -RERPLEEH - K
SEREKERARKERAZERREZE
ERBEPEAENY (ZFENF :
36%) °

AEERERATHRNESL B RE
ERREZEREERESFEL  #M
EREZEERRER - AREBHELE
RAZEALTBITAAMRIEMER
BE MERERRARLIEENRTE
AU RXEREX -
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVE AND POLICIES
(Cont'd)

Liquidity risk

The Group's objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding
and flexibility through the use of bank and other borrowings. The Group
closely monitors its exposure to liquidity risk by reviewing the cash position
report daily. It analyses efficiency of fund management. The maturity profile of
the Group’s financial liabilities at the end of the reporting period based on

contractual undiscounted payments are summarised below:

On Less than

)

B ERR M

38. BIXEREEREEREE (&)

3-12

demand 3 months months
RER HWN3EA 32128A
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TERT TERT

RBEEER
AEBZBERREBTARTREME
R EESRBEERBEEE ZRRET
& AEEBAENRENNEE B
NERERYESAR - AEEEHNE
CERNE  RERPHEER - A5E
PHEABRANAFTRENRAFEL
HMERBALT

2-5 Over 5
years years Total
2Z25% 5FHLE At

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
Ti#n TER TER

Year ended BEEZ-Z2NE

31 December 2009 +ZA=+—H

LEE

Interest-bearing

borrowings FHREXR — 5717 28,974 124,793 183,993 343,477
Other payables Hot B~ 500 1,915 6,390 3,191 — — 11,496
Tax payables JE A~ Bt 5K = — 688 — — 688

1,915 12,107 32,853 124,793 183,993 355,661
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVE AND POLICIES 38. EBRREEEEREE (&)
(Cont'd)

Liquidity risk (Cont'd) REBESRER (&
On Less than 3-12 Over 5
demand 3 months months 2-5 years years Total
2% DR3EA  3E12[EA 285%  BENLE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TET THET THET THET THT THET

Year ended BE-_TTN\F
31 December 2008 +ZR=+—H
HFE
Interest-bearing
borrowings STEER — 5,409 26,902 119,382 197,623 349,316
Derivative financial MHEER
instruments TH
— Securities derivatives ~ — R HFHTETL A = 14,903 12,444 = = 27,347
Other payables H At & < 50R 14,768 6,974 1,500 — — 23242
Tax payables & A5 75 3K — — 1,237 — — 1,237
14,768 27,286 47,083 119,382 197,623 401,142
Fair value AYE
All financial instruments are carried at amounts not materially different from FEeRMIAORR_ZTNFR-ZT
their fair values as at 31 December 2009 and 2008. ZNFT_A=T—HHATEEEX

EENEBIE -
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BRI

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVE AND POLICIES 38. MIXEREEBEEREE (&)

(Cont'd)

Fair value disclosures

The following presents the carrying value of financial instruments measured at
fair value at 31 December 2009 across the three levels of the fair value
hierarchy defined in HKFRS 7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures, with the fair
value of each financial instrument categorised in its entirety based on the
lowest level of input that is significant to that fair value measurement. The

levels are defined as follows:

J Level | (highest level): fair values measured using quoted prices

(unadjusted) in active markets for identical financial instruments;

*  Level 2: fair values measured using quoted prices in active markets for
similar financial instruments, or using valuation techniques in which all
significant inputs are directly or indirectly based on observable market

data;

*  Level 3 (lowest level): fair values measured using valuation techniques in

which any significant input is not based on observable market data.

AFERE
MTF2IR-FFAF+-HA=1t—H
EARTEAENERTAZREME
B(ERAMBREEAFTR £ BT
A REMEENRATESRAEN=
ES®moE  BERLBNEHTA
ZAVFERETARERVEFERE
EEN2BRESERMET FH2
¥ BREAFBEQOT :

E1R (BHER)  HAEERT
B ARSRIANGRE RIEH
B)HEATE

F24 - NREREMSTRUEE
TANRE IMEEELHHE
BREZRERABETHEENME
B HERYE:

FIM(HEER)  MAEMER
LW FERABRNSEENM
B AR B RFE -
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVE AND
(Cont'd)

Assets measured at fair value

POLICIES
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38. MBEEBREEZERRER ()

2009 Level | Level 2 Level 3
“EEBhE F1R E28 HE3R
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THERT THERT TERT TERT
Financial assets at fair value BRATEGF AR
through profit or loss: CHBRE
Equity securities PR 5 837,096 837,096 — —
Unlisted derivative financial FLEmITESR
instruments TA 12,766 — 12,766 —
Unlisted convertible bonds I £ AR R 5 36,485 — 36,485 —

During the year ended 3| December 2009, there were no transfers between

Level | and Level 2 fair value measurements, and no transfers into and out of

Level 3 fair value measurements.

HE-TTNGET-A=+—HLF
B BIRERFBATEFAEZEALE
B R EBAEMR LT EFESA
EIRAFEFEED o
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVE AND POLICIES

(Cont'd)

Capital management

The objectives of the Group'’s capital management are to safeguard the entity's
ability to continue as a going concern and to provide returns for shareholders.
The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments, including
payment of dividend to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue
new shares or sell assets to reduce debts. No changes were made in the

objectives, policies or processes during the years ended 3| December 2009

and 2008.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of gearing ratio, which is net debt

divided by total equity. The Group's policy is to maintain a stable gearing ratio.

The gearing ratios at the end of the reporting period were as follows:

38.

e MR MR

N

BHEEREERRERBE (@)

EXER

AEBEAERZARARBERZE

BRERNRARRRHADR - AEE
B AR R K

ERRAREEARE £
B MBRRERRARETHRE L E
BENWRVAERE - REE-ZZAFR
“EENET_A=t-HLFE F
BAR BRMEFHREED -

AEERBEAREEL R I AFEFER

W) EREREN - AEBZHR

RERRRZEEEELE - REHY
GERACRBAELREIMT

2009 2008

—2ENE —EENF

HK$’000 HK$'000

TER TET

Interest-bearing borrowings arEEXK 295,369 293,421
Less: Cash and cash equivalents o BRekBHe%EE (196,419) (167,057)
Net debt RIEFE 98,950 126,364
Total equity frEs 2,530,020 1,540,513
Gearing ratio EREEELE 3.9% 8.2%

140



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

39. EVENT AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

(2)

Pursuant to the ordinary resolution passed at extraordinary general
meeting 28 January 2010, it was approved that placing agreement dated
28 December 2009 with a placing agent to procure, on a fully
underwritten basis, placees to subscribe in cash for 200,000,000 placing
shares at HK$0.45 per placing share at any time during the placing period
("Placing Agreement”). Further details of the placing of new shares are
set out in the circular of the Company dated || January 2010. On ||
March 2010, the Company allotted and issued all the placing shares

pursuant to the Placing Agreement.

On 2 March 2010, the Company granted 59,740,000 share options to
certain employees and a consultant of the Company under the New
Scheme as described in note 3| to the consolidated financial statements
to subscribe for a total of 59,740,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.| each in
the share capital of the Company (“share”) at an exercise price of
HK$0.375 per share. On 18 March 2010, the share options were fully
exercised and the Company received proceeds of HK$22,402,500.

2009 3 EFIEIBRIZRARAA

R e MR AR

Year ended 3| December 2009 HE—ZENF+_A=+—HBULFE

39. ERARERE

(a)

(b)

BRE-_Z-ZF-A-TNBKRXE
HAASRBNERREAR  #E
R-BEAE+-_A-+N\HE—
FRERBI VR HAHEER
EREAREERRNEAREEZES
BROAETZEEEBUNRERE
200,000,0008% fit & & 17 2 B2 & 1%
#((REHE]) - EEFRES 2
HEENAAT _E-EFE-F+
—BMBEAN - R=F—ZTF=A
T—B ARAREEEHRRLE
RETEHEERD °

RZZE—ZF=A=AH ARAR
BARE B ISR M 5131 it /0 37 51
EmMARAETEER —GEBRE
{159,740,00017 B Ak # - FIIR B
0.375BTHTREA LARBALR
F& 7 7 59,740,0008% & A% 0.17% 7T
VEER o RZE-ZF=ATN
A ZSERECEZESE K
N A|E1522,402,50078 TTHIFRE
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39. EVENT AFTER REPORTING PERIOD (Contd)

(c) On 24 March 2010, an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company entered into a share purchase agreement with an independent
third party, Forefront Group Limited (“Forefront™), to dispose of 100%
issued share capital of Perfect Time Investments Limited (“Perfect Time"),
an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company incorporated in
British Virgin Islands, and its wholly owned subsidiary, Jet Star Industries
Limited (“Jet Star”) (collectively the “Perfect Time Group”), at a total
consideration of HK$100,000,000. Perfect Time is principally engaged in
investment holding. Jet Star is principally engaged in property investment

for rental purpose.

The total consideration of HK$100,000,000 is to be satisfied by the issue
of 400,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of Forefront at HK$0.25
per share. The transaction is subject to shareholders’ approval at the
extraordinary general meeting to be held on 7 May 2010. Further details
of the disposal of these subsidiaries are set out in the circular of the
Company to be dated 21 April 2010.

(d) On 27 November 2009, an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company entered into a sale and purchase agreement with an
independent third party for the acquisition of an investment property in
Hong Kong at cash consideration of HK$58,172,400. A deposit of
HK$5,817,240 has been paid in November 2009 and the remaining
balance was paid at the completion date of acquisition on 29 March
2010.

40. COMPARATIVE FIGURES
Certain comparative figures of 2008 have been restated to conform with the

presentation as required by certain accounting standards described in note 2

to the consolidated financial statements.

R e MR

39. EHHREE (B

(c)

RZE-—ZE=AZ1+WHE AR
AIFEF2EMB AR EBLE=
TRASEERAR ([R7]) L
B & - JA#4{8100,000,000
BTHEARAMRIFZEMBA
AIREREFRAA(T8EXE]) (B
RERUHEEMAL) 22 HEE
ThA - ZRE2EHE DR
EXARAR (k] (RREIHEX
£E)) BXIZNEREEM -
EBTENSMEREGLRER

# X 8 100,000,000%% 7T b & B
0.267% 7T # 17 400,000,000 & i
0. 10T EBBRM T HAXA -
ZRXHARERREN_F—F
AALARTHBRRERNAES ]
B WEZEMBARESHER
BRARRZF-FFMA-T—
HEBEA o

RZZETNF+—AZTERA K
ARRBEF2ENBARRELE
ZHAVEEGZE  UWRERE
58,172,400 TR E —HBRBRE
mE - _EENEF+-AENES
58172408 7T * BHR_F—F
F=ZAZThBRETKAZMN -

40. EBEF

REAEAMBRRME2MEE TS5
ERWENTA  BEI-FTNFE
TH®REF -



2009 4% EABEIREZERERAT
Summary of Financial Information B ERHE

Year ended 3| December 2009 HE=ZENF+-_A=+—HLEFE

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the last ATRAEERBELENRERE c ¥ERE
five financial years, as extracted from the audited consolidated financial statements ENEERE  BRAKERFAMBRRY
and reclassified as appropriate, is set out below. REEBEHNHE -

RESULTS LS |

Year ended 31 December

BEEt-A=1T—-HLEE

2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
—EENF ZTTN\F ZIZTTLF ZTITRE _—TTLF
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TET TET FHET FHET
(restated) (restated) (restated)
(&51) (&51) (&%)
Turnover 30 94,451 (341,209) 104,928 2,192 (8,998)
Profit (Loss) before BRuan A (BE)
taxation 133,285 (786,745) (197,582) (114761) (131,715)
Taxation HA (3,940 (11,083) — - -
Profit (Loss) after BRE#EN (B8)
taxation 129,345 (797,828) (197,582) (114761) (131,715)
Minority interest DB R E R — — — — —
Profit (Loss) for the year  FREF (E1E) 129,345 (797,828) (197,582) (114761) (131,715)
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MHENEE

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERAERE
2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
—EENF ZZTEN\FE TTLF CITTRF IZTTHF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHT FHT FHT FHAT
Investment properties REME 638,773 609,814 326,500 7,200 9,650
Property, plant and equipment #1% « 5 K& 224,805 194,96 35,049 22,977 22,391
Intangible assets B EE — 131,879 134,626 — —
Other investments Hinig & 146,430 123,521 113,965 — —
Interests in associates ANEL 183,459 — — 98,118 238,549
Available-for-sale financial AJ 4 1 B
assets EE 27,061 — — — —
Prepayments for acquisition — WWHEIR B3
of investment properties A = 5,304 8,656 — —
Loans receivable ie= 13,849 15,720 — — —
Other financial asset Hib B EE — — — — 7,143
Current assets mBEE 1,632,594 814923 1,229,522 232,856 66,464
Current liabilities mEaE (39,490) (61,133) (181,197) (15,749) (18,860)
2,827,481 1,834,989 1,667,121 345,402 325337
Equity holders’ funds BagEAEe 1,928,312 1,540,513 1,486,465 329,614 311,567
Minority interest DERE R 601,708 - - - _
Long term interest-bearing REE S
borrowings & 268,063 269,037 180,656 15,788 13,770
Deferred tax liabilities BELEREAE 29,398 25,439 — — —
2,827,481 1,834,989 1,667,121 345,402 325,337




2009 4 4§ @“%U@%EEEJ%BEQE
Particulars of Properties Held by the Group ZAREBIEFE 2WEEE

Year ended 3| December 2009 HE=ZENF+-_A=+—HLEFE

(A) INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (A) REME

Description Use Lease term
B3 iibiub Jish=3 5
Jifu Plaza, No. 103 Shibapu Road, Liwan District, Commercial Medium term
Guangzhou City, Guangdong Province, RS  EA
The People’s Republic of China

hEARANE

EREEMT S EE

TNHRI03REEAE

Unit | (also known as House No. A), Sunshine Villa, Residential Medium term
No. 48 Mount Kellett Road, Hong Kong = 4

B 05 1L3E 48 5
BRIEE 1 Ex (IMEAFE)

House No. 6 Somerset Path, 8 Kam Tsin South Road, Residential Medium term
The Royal Oaks, North, New Territories F=F b HA
FRtEE Bk 8 %

HRERRMAE 6 5% F 5

36B, Tower 8B and Car Parking Space L5 — 152, Bel-Air No. 8, Residential Medium term
Bel-Air on The Peak, Island South, Hong Kong = &
BEBADERE

B 855 8B B 36B = R {FE {7 L5-152

39A, Tower 5 and Car Parking Space L7 — 61, Bel-Air No. 8, Residential Medium term
Bel-Air on The Peak, FE AL
Island South, Hong Kong

%;/%/\//lﬁ A7 /%

Bb% 85 5 FE 39A E RIS EN L7-61
40A, Tower 5 and Car Parking Space L5 — 107, Bel-Air No. 8, Residential Medium term
Bel-Air on The Peak, E=E 4

Island South, Hong Kong
BHEEY /%ﬁ E3p) /%
B 85 5 & 40A E RIFENL L5107
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(A) INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Cont'd)

Description

3 tibiub

Flat A on |5th and I6th Floors and
Car Parking Space No. | on ground floor,

Formwell Garden, Nos. 46 & 48 Blue Pool Road,

Hong Kong
B4
B8 46 X 485K

LA 15 R 16 ATRMTE 1 5EE

Unit A on 2nd Floor and Car Parking Space

No. 3| on lower ground floor,

Hatton Place, No. IA Po Shan Road, Hong Kong
BBEME AR

BRI 2BAZTRMTEES 31 RIFEM

All car parking spaces on 2nd Floor, 3rd Floor

and 5th floor, China United Centre,No. 28 Marble Road,

North Point, Hong Kong
BARILATHEE 28%
EEFL21E  3IBRSEMBEFEEM

Room 2201-2203, & Room 2205-2209,

22nd Floor, China United Centre,

28 Marble Road,

North Point, Hong Kong

BEILABEEE 285

EEd 0 2218 2201-2203 E K 2205-2209 =

26th Floor, China United Centre,

28 Marble Road, North Point, Hong Kong
BEILABFEE 285

EESD L2618

(A) RENE (&)

Use Lease term
Jich= ikl
Residential Long term
FE R
Residential Long term
FE R
Car park Long term
(B2 & H
Commercial Long term
Commercial Long term



Particulars of Properties Held by the Group

Year ended 3| December 2009 HE=ZENF+-_A=+—HLEFE

(A) INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Contd)

Description

B3 iibiub

29th Floor, China United Centre,
28 Marble Road, North Point, Hong Kong

EBItASEE 285
EERD 2918

30th Floor; China United Centre,
28 Marble Road, North Point, Hong Kong

ErltAEEE 285
FEEFR L 3018

31st Floor, China United Centre,
28 Marble Road, North Point, Hong Kong

EBItABEB 285
EfERL 31 E

Use
A&

Commercial

[5ES

Commercial

(GBS

Commercial

[5ES

2009 3 EFIEIBRIZRARAA

AEERFR 2YEFHE

(A) REWE (&)

Lease term

5

Long term

R

Long term

R

Long term

R
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(B) LEASEHOLD LAND AND BUILDINGS

Description

F A 4o 31k

Duplex flat A on 21Ist and 22nd Floors together
with a portion of roof thereabove and Car Parking
Space No. 33, Royalton,

No. |18 Pok Fu Lam Road, Hong Kong
BABRME 1187

RENBR 2BEABNAZE
EREEHARERE IBREEM

Flat B on 22nd Floor together with a portion

of roof thereabove and Car Parking Space No. 22,
Royalton, |18 Pok Fu Lam Road, Hong Kong
BBERME 118 57

FE2EBEBERELHOIRERE 22K FEN

32nd Floor, China United Centre,

28 Marble Road, North Point, Hong Kong
BEEILABFEE 285

EEDL3I218

Use
A&

Residential

FE

Residential

FEE

Commercial

[HES

AEERR 2UEFHE

(B) HALHREF

Lease term

s

Medium term

5

Medium term

5

Long term

=3
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